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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Directors of the 
Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority 
Rocky Hill, Connecticut  
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (the 
Authority) (a component unit of the State of Connecticut), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors 
consider internal control relevant to the Authority's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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Prior Period Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority as of June 30, 2020, were audited by 
other auditors, whose report dated September 30, 2020, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.  

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers them to be an 
essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Authority’s basic financial statements. The combining schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 23, 2021 on our 
consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
Hartford, Connecticut 
September 23, 2021 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Materials Innovation and

Recycling Authority's financial performance provides an overview of the Authority's financial
activities for the years ended June 30,202I and 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the

Authority's financial statements that follow this section. The MD&A is intended to provide
meaningful information for the current year, and in comparison to prior years, thereby enhancing
the reader's understanding of the Authority's financial position and the results of its operations.

Fiscal year 202I represents a turning point for
the Authority marked by recognition of the need

to prepare to suspend its waste combustion
activities. In fiscal year 2021, the Authority
generated total operating revenue of $71.76
million and incurred $73.25 million in operating
expenses before depreciation, resulting in an

operating loss before depreciation of $1.49
million. Total operating revenues decreased by
$2.51 million (3.4%) reflecting reduced energy
sales, other service charges and other operating
revenue partially ofßet by increased member service charges. Total operating expenses before
depreciation decreased by $0.87 million (1.2%) primarily reflecting reduced solid waste

operations, and reduced administrative and operational services, partially ofßet by an increase in
maintenance and utilities and including $5.46 million in çontractor severance and

decommissioning costs recognized in anticipation of suspending waste combustion activities.
Income before depreciation decreased by $ 1 .64 million from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 202I .

After 814.67 million in depreciation and amofüzation expenses, the Authority incurred a $16,16
million operating loss. The Authority also incurred net non-operating expenses of $0.58 million
resulting in a total reduction in the Authority's net position of $16.74 million.

The Authority's total assets decreased by $10.98 million (11.8%) reflecting a $13.73 million
(30.1%) reduction in net capital assets offset by a52.75 million (5.8%) increase in total current
assets. The Authority's total liabilities increased by $5.76 million (1043%).

The most significant economic factors with the potential to adversely affect the Authority are its
Connecticut Solid V/aste System ("CSV/S") business model, the age and serviceability of the
CSWS Waste to Energy Facility ("WTE Facility"), and the Department of Energy and

Environmental Protection's ("DEEP's") unsuccessful initiative to redevelop the CSWS known as
ooResource Rediscovery". These challenges were exacerbated in fiscal yeu 2021 by the
emergence and impact of the Covid 19 pandemic, settlement of disputes concerning operation of
the CSWS Recycling Facility and the need to provide for the suspension of waste combustion at

the WTE Facility and its eventual decommissioning.

The CSV/S business model is challenging due to its reliance on volatile non-disposal fee revenue

to maintain disposal fees for CSWS participating municipalities below the levels that trigger
their contract termination provisions. V/hile the Authority has mitigated this challenge by
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subsidizing the CSWS to the extent it can with income and reserves from its Properfy Division,

the adopted tip fees for fïscal years 2018 through 2022 exceeded these triggers, and the

Authority's ability to cohtinue this subsidy diminishes greatly in its fiscal year 2023.

Major components of the WTE Facility have reachcd the end of their useful life and its
operational performance has declined steadily. This decline was dramatically demonstrated in
fiscal year 2019 by the failure of its two steam turbines and continues to be evident in its key

performance metrics including boiler availability, energy generation and waste throughput.

Recognizing the sustainability challenges of the CSV/S and its WTE Facility, the State

empowered DEEP to undertake a request for proposals process to provide for its redevelopment.

On December 310 2017, DEEP selected the Sacyr Rooney Recovery Team, LLC (SRRT) to
refurbish the existing CSWS infrastructure while incorporating new waste diversion technology,

as its prefened redevelopmçnt of the CSWS. The Authority engaged in extensive discussions

with SRRT to establish a feasible project structure, in the best interests of the municipalities to

be served, and consistent with both the Authority's enabling legislation and DEEP's RFP. These

challenges were addressed in a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") signed at the close of
fiscal year 2019. The MOU established a staged development framework prioritizing
refurbishment of the WTE Facility, a capacity and revenue sharing model, performance

guarantees, public governance, Authority financing of the WTE Facility refurbishment, SRRT

fìnancing of its proposed diversion technology, and strict deadlines to move the project forward.

During fiscal year 2020, the Authority and SRRT executed a fully developed term sheet

consistent with the MOU which included detail financial and demand forecasts as well as the

tipping fees required to support the project. Upon execution of the term sheet, the Authorþ
actively sought to secure long term municipal waste commitments reflecting the required tipping
fees. Howevero the Authority was not successful in securing these commitments primarily
because the tipping fee was considered too high. The Authority then sought additional support

for the project from the State in the form of energy price support, State bond support or demand

support (through ooflow control"). The Authority advised SRRT that, in the absence of such State

support, the project was not viable and the Authority would withdraw from further negotiations

and terminate the term sheet. During fiscal year 202t, the State formally rejected any such

support. Accordingly, the Authority withdrew from further negotiation, terminated the term

sheet, immediately issued a new request for proposals for continued operation of the CSWS

Recycling Facility, and commenced planning and contracting activities necessary to suspend

waste combustion and transition the WTE Facility to transfer operations.

Despite the unsuccessful conclusion of DEEP's Resource Rediscovery, the Authority has made

signifïcant progress toward the goal of serving its municipal customers at least through
expiration of its municipal servioe agreements on June 30, 2027, This progress is outlined
further in the Economic Factors and Outlook section of the MD&A. Regrettably this will require

the use of alternative disposal capability, waste transfer, out-of-state landfill disposal and

displacement of certain customers. The Authority is hopeful that these steps will ultimately
represent stop gap measures taken pending new waste management infrastructure development

initiatives in the State. Strong collaboration among the State, DEEP, the Authortty and CSV/S
participating municipalities is essential to any such development.
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Using This Report

The Authority is an enterprise frrnd of the State of Connecticut. Enterprise funds are used in
governmental accounting to present activities where fees are charged to external customers for
goods that are sold or services that are rendered. Usually these activities are financed by debt
that is secured solely by a pledge of the operating revenues of that activity.

The Authority's financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. The financial
statements utilize the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental entities.
This means that all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Authority are

included on its Statement of Net Position, and that all revenues and expenses are recognized
when earned and incurred, respectively, on its Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position.

The Authority's net position is presented in three components (i) net investment in capital assets,

(ii) restricted, and (iii) unrestricted. Net position presented as net investment in capital assets

consists of all significant capital assets owned by the Authority, net of accumulated depreciation,
and reduced by any outstanding balances of bonds or other debt related to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Capital assets include land, improvements to land,
easements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery, equipment, infrastructure,
and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations that have an initial useful
life beyond one year. Capital assets are depreciated over their useful lives and periodic
depreciation expense is reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position. Net Position is presented as restricted when constraints are placed on the Authority's
assets by creditors, grantors, laws or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reflect the operating and
non-operating revenues and expenses of the Authority for the fiscal year with the difference
representing the change in net position. That change, combined with the prior year-end net
position total, reconciles to the net position total at the end of the current fiscal year.

The Staternent of Cash Flows reports cash activities for the fiscal year resulting from operating
activities, capital and related financing activities, non-capital financing activities and investing
activities. The net result of these activities added to the beginning of the year cash balance
reconciles to the cash balance at the end of the current fiscal year.

Unless otherwise stated, all dollar values presented in this MD&A are in thousands.

Notes to the f inancÍal Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is important to
understanding the financial staternents. They are presented following this MD&A and the
Authority's financial statements.

5
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Supplemental Information

Supplemental information includes a Combining Schedule of Statement of Net Position, a

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, a Combining
Schedule õf Cash Flows, and a Combining Schedule of Net Position. These schedules segmeni

the Authority's financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 between the various

operating divisions and projects comprising the Authority. This segmentation reflects the terms

and conditions of facility operating contracts, service agreements, related documents and statutes

generally providing for the financial self-sufficiency of such projects and divisions as described

further in Note 1A to the Financial Statements (Entity and Services). For fiscal yew 2Ù2t,these
projects and divisions include:

o Authority General Fund
o Connecticut Solid Waste System
r Property Division
o Landfill Division
o Mid Connecticut Project (for project closeout purposes)

Required Additional Reports

Required additional reports include a report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.
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Statement of Net Position

The net position of the Authority is summarizedin Table 1. Net position is a meaSurement of the
Authority's financial condition at one point in time. As indicated in Table 1, the Authority's net
position as of June 30, 2021 (total assets less total liabilities) was $70,780 which represents a

916,739 (19.1%) reduction from the prior year. The $16,739 rcduction in net position is the
result of the decrease in total assets of $10,978 shown on Table 2, combined with an increase in
total liabilities of $5,761 shown on Table 3.

TABLE 1

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As ofJune 30,

(Dollars in Thousands)

2021 2020 2019

ASSETS
Cunent unrestricted assets

Cunent resficted assets
Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets, net

Total non-current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

$

45,597 56,672

47212
230

50,518

209
$ 49,095 $

1rLo3

50,198 m s0J27

5,341
179

$ 5,512
159

5,520 re
5,520 5,671

J 45.597 56,672

T--I039- T-@rtæ-

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES

Current unrestricted liabilities
Current restricted liabilities

Total current llabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

70,780 87.519 101,728
T--8,,¿-o6L rc -S---Tõ7ø

$ 10,229 $
1,052

, 11281_

ll,28l

31,863
51

38,866

45,597

51

41,871

56,672

45,006
50

Assets

The Authority's total assets are further summarized on Table 2. The $10,978 reduction in total
assets reflects afi2,756 (5.8%) increase in current assets offset by a $13,734 (30.1%) reduction in
non-current assets.
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Current Assets

The Authority's total current assets increased by 52,756 (5.8%) reflecting increases in cash and

cash equivalents, receivables, net of allowances and prepaid expenses, partially offset by a

reduction in inventory.

Unrestricted cash and cash eqrlivalents increased by a total of $1,208 (3.8%) from June 30,2020
to June 30,2A2t which includes the net effect of funds transferred from the Property Division to

the CSV/S in support of CSWS operations.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents associated with the CSWS increased by $6,820 reflecting
enhanced support from the Property Division's tip fee stabilization fund and general fund
provided in response to both the financial impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic and settlement of
contractor disputes over operation of the CSWS Recycling Facility. Savings in budget versus

actual CSV/S operating expenses and an increase to the carrying value of the CSV/S major
maintenance fund also contributed to this increase.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents associated with the Authority's Property Division
declined by 55,442 primarily due to its support of the CSWS. A reduction in the carrying value
of the Property Division's improvement fund and jets major maintenance reserve also

contributed to this reduction.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents associated with the Authority's Landfill Division
declined by 8212 primarily reflecting use of the division's pollution insurance reserve.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents associated with the Mid Connecticut Project declined by
$21 with application of approved member town distributions to current CSWS billings.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents associated with the Authority's general administration
increased by $63 primarily due to furcreased funding in its severance reserve.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents increased by $873 (379.6%) from June 30,2020 to June 30,

2021. This increase is directly associated with waste hauler customer replacement of payment
bonds with cash guarantee of payments.

The $637 (9.2%) increase in receivables, net of allowances, is primarily attributed to a $738
(12.I%) increase in CSWS accounts receivable partially offset by a $101 reduction in accounts
receivable associated with the Property Division and Landfill Division. CS$/S accounts

receivable associated with electricity sales, mctal sales, tip fees and contractor reimbursements
all increased, and were partially offset by settlement of disputes over operation of the CSWS
Recycling Facility and receipt of settlement ñ¡nds due for a wheel loader fire.

Other changes in Current Assets are associated with the Authority's normal business cycle.

The consolidated nature of the Authority's current assets summarized on Table 2 does not reflect
amounts due from other funds. Amounts due from other funds increased significantly within the

I
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Property Division from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021due to increased borrowings from the

Property Division's tip fee stabilization fund. Amounts borrowed and used to supplement the

CSWS operating and major maintenance accounts are recognized as due from other funds in the

Authority's Combining Schedule of Statement of Net Position afiached as Exhibit A to the

Financial Statements. Tip fee stabilization funds loaned and used to supplement the CSWS

improvement fund are not recognized as due from other funds in the Authority's financial

statements as both of these funds reside within the Property Division. These funds are internally

tracked and considered contingently due to the tip fee stabilization fund.

Non-Current Assets

The $13,734 (30.1%) reduction in non-current assets reflects a $13,165 (70.2%) reduction in
depreciable assets together with a 5569 (2,1%) reduction in non-depreciable assets.

The $13,165 (70.2%) reduction in depreciable assets reflects fiscal year 2027 additional
accumulated depreciation of 514,667 combined with net sales and disposals of assets (write offs)
of $135 which were partially ofßet by additions and transfers to capital assets of $1,637.

Additions and transfers to capital assets included loader and turbine acquisition and repair work.
The $569 (2.1%) reduction in non-depreciable assets is exclusively a reduction in construction in
progress primarily associated with the previous end of useful life of major còmponents of the

WTE Facility.

TABLE 7
SUMMARYOF CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2021 2020

202t 2021
Increase/ Percent

(Decrease) Inorease/
from 2020 fDecrease)

2020 2020
Inorease/ Percent

(Deorease) Increase/
2019 ûom2019 (Decrease)

CURRENT ÀSSETS

Unresticted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net of allowances

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Total Unrestricted Assets

Restricted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON.CURRENT ASSETS

Capital Assets:

Depreciable, net

Nondepreciable

TOTAL NON.CURRENT ASSETS

$ 33,19 $ 31991 $

7,59s 6Bs8

5,572 5,833

2.729 2A3o

1208

637

Q61)
299

3.8o/o

9.2o/o

(4 sye)

12.3o/o

$ 31,169 $ 822 2.6%

11,083 (4,125) (37.2%)

5,779 54 0.f/o
2A87 (5Ð Q.3%)

49.W5 47212 1,883 4.U/o 50 518 (3,300 (6.5%)

2W 2t t0.u/o1.103 230 873 379.6%

50.198 47.442 2.7s6 5.8o/o 50,727 (3285) (6.5%)

(13,165) (70.2%)5,581

26282

18,746

26.851

2s,889

30,783

(7,143)

ß.932)

(27.6õ/o)

(12.8o/o)156Sl (2 10/"\

31.863 4s.597 (L3.734\ (30.10/o\ 56,672 (11,075\ (19.5%)

$ 82.06r $ 93.039 $ (10978ì (1r.8%) $ 107.399 S (14.360) (l3.4%)

I
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Liabilities

The Authority's total liabilities are further summarized on Table 3

The $5,761 (104.4%) increase in current liabilities from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal yeat 2021

reflects a 55,471 (164.3%) increase in accrued expenses payable from unrestricted assets, and a

$S73 (487.7Vo) increase in accrued expenses payable from restricted assets which was partially
offset by a $583 (29.6%) reduction in accounts payable.

The $5,471 (164.3%) increase in accrued expenses payable from unrestricted assets is primarily
associated with the Authority's plan to suspend waste combustion at the WTE Facility and

transition it to a waste transfer operation. In order to ensure the availabilþ of qualified

contractor personnel to operate the WTE Facility through this transition, the Authority has

amended the facility operating agreement to provide severance payments to contract personnel

that remain on the job until released with the Authority's consent. The Authority's liabiltty for
such severance payments is estimated at $2,156. Upon completion of this transition, the

Authority will also proceed to undertake certain decommissioning work within the WTE Facility
in anticipation of its transfer to a futurç developer. This work will primarily include cleaning the

WTE Facility and support infrastructure of municipal solid waste, ash and other associated

residue caused by its conversion and use as a waste to energy facility, undertaking ACM and

PCB surveyso and sealing and securing building structures. This work is estimated at $3,300.
Other increases to accrued expenses payable from unrestricted assets totaled $15.

The $873 (487,7%) increase in accrued expenses payable from restricted assets reflects waste

hauler customer replacement of payment bonds with cash guarantee of payments.

The $583 (29.6%) reduction in accounts payable is mostly attributed to reductions to CSWS
contractor accounts payable which declined by $560.

The Authority has no long-term liabilities. The Authority's Resource Recovery Revenue

Refunding Bonds (Covanta Southeastern Connecticut Company Project * 2010 Series A)
supported by a Special Capital Reserve Fund (SCRF), were tully paid in fiscal year 2016. These

were the Authority's only outstanding bonds at that time and the Authority has not subsequently
incurred any long-term liabilities.

The consolidated nature of the Authority's current liabilities summarized on Table 3 does not
reflect amounts due to other funds. Amounts due to other funds increased significantly within
the CSWS from fiscal yeat 2020 to fiscal year 2021 due to increased borrowing from the
Property's Division's tip fee stabilization fund. Amounts borrowed and used to supplement the
CSWS operating and major maintenance accounts are recognized as due to other funds in the

Authority's Combining Schedule of Statement of Net Position attached as Exhibit A to the
Financial Statements. Tip fee stabilization funds loaned and used to supplement the CSWS
improvement fund are not recognized as due from other funds in the Authority's financial
statements as both of these funds reside within the Property Division. These funds are internally
tracked and considered contingently due to the tip fee stabilization fund.

10
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TABLD 3

SUMMARY OF' CURRÍNT AND LONGTERM LIABILITIES
Fiscal Yean Ended June 30'

(Dollan in Thousands)

2021 2021
Increase/ Petcant

(Deorease) Inctease/
from 2020 lf)ecrensel202t 2020 20t9

2020 2020
Increase/ Percent

(Decrease) ïncrease/
from2019 (Deçrease)

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from unreshicted assets:

Accounts payable

Accctued exponsçs and other current liabilitbs

Uneamed rEvonue

Total payable from unrestricted assêts

Payable from restricted assets:

Acccrued oxpenses and other current liabilitbs

Total payable from restrbted assets

TOTAL CURRENT LTABILITIES

10229 5,341 4'888 91.5o/o

s 2,344 $ (371) (15.8%)

2,347 983 41,90/o

82r (783) (e5.4%)

5.512 (171) (3.1o/o')

$ 1,3e0 $

8,801

38

Ln3 $ (583)

3,330 sATr
38

(29.60/0')

164.3o/o

î (p/"

1.052 119 ß71 491 10/" 159 20 12.6%

, t.05? t79 813 4s1\7o/1

tt28t 5,520 5J6t 104.40/o

159 20 12.60/o

TOTAL LIABILITIES

3"671 o51) (2,70/o\

s 11281 $ 5.520 $ 5.761 104.4% $ 5.671 $ (151) (2.7o/o')

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The reduction in the Authority's net position from June 30, 2020 to June 30,2021 shown on
Table ! was generated from the change in net position shown on Table 4, Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the year ended June 30, 2021. Changes in
net position represent the results of operations of the Authority (i.e. its net income).

The $16,739 reduction in net position reflects total operating and non-operâting revenues of
872,634 as shown'on Tabler 5 being exceeded by total operating and non-operating expenses of
$89,373 as shown on Table 6. The Authority incured a $1,488 loss before depreciation and

before certain net non-operating expenses. Depreciation and amortization expenses totaled

$14,669 and the Authority incurred net non-operating expenses of $582.

It
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TABLE 4

STATEMENTS OF REYENUES, E)(PENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Fiscal Yean Ended June 30,

@ollars in Thousands)

2021 2020 2019

Operating revenues

Operating expenses

Income before depreciation and amoftization and

other non-operating revenues and (expenses), net

Deprec iation and amortization

Loss before other non-operating

revenues and (expenses), net

Non-operating revenues (expenses), net

Change in net position

Total net position, beginning of year

Total net position, end of year

$ 71,765 $
732s3

74280 $

74.t27

77,508

67.54r

(1,488)

14,669

153

12,633

9,967

39,054

(16,15Ð

(s82)

(r2A80)
fl"729\

(29,087)

nA94
(16,739)

87,519

(t4,209)

10r.728

(17,593)

1r9,321,

$ 70,780 $ 87,519 $ 101,728

Revenues

Table 5 summarizes total revenue
(operating and non-operating) for the
three prior fiscal years ended June 30,

2021. Total operating and non-operating
revenue decreased by 52,222 (3.0%)
from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021.

As indicated in Table 5, operating
revenue decreased by $2,515 (3.4%)
from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021.
Other service charges declined 53,472
(36.1%), energy sales declined $2,670
(9.9o/o) and othcr operating revenue
declined $541 (13.0%). These reductions were partially offset by a $4,168 (12/%) increase in
member service charges.

The Authority's other service charges decreased by $3,472 (36.1%) from fiscal year 2020 to
fiscal year 2021. All other service charges are associated with operation of the CSWS and

reflect MSW deliveries by non-participating municipalities. Overall the volume of these

deliveries declined by 35.7% from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021. Economic uncertainty

caused by the Covid 19 pandemic resulted in a lack of delivery commitments being made

pursuant to the Authority's Waste Hauler contracts. The Authority also increased its tip fees due

-l
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under the Waste Hauler contracts. These two factors lead to a migration to lower priced
contracting alternatives including the Authority's Intemrptible Contract and Spot Market
deliveries. While deliveries under Waste Hauler contracts declined by 71.3%, Intemrptible
Contract and Spot Market deliveries increased by I97.2%.

The Authority's energy sales decreased by $2,670 (9.9%) from fiscal year 202Q to fiscal year

2021. The majority of this decrease is attributed to energy sales within the Property Division
which decreased by 53,271 (24.3%) due to continuing reductions in ISO New England's capacity
payments for the Authority's Jet Peaking Units. ISO.New England's capacity payment rate

declined by 24.7%. Energy sales within the Landfill Division, derived from operation of the
Hartford Landfill solar array, declined a modest S6 (4.7%). These reductions were partially
offset by a $606 (4.5%) increase in CSWS energy sales. The CSWS increase was driven by the
price of its Class II Renewable Energy Credits, which increased from eight dollars ($8.00) per

credit in fiscal year 2020 to twelve dollars ($12.00) per credit in fiscal year 2021. While CSWS
electricity generation declined by 83% in fiscal year 2021, the price paid for electric generation
increased by 8.9Yo, which allowed for a very modest 0.1% reduction in CSWS electric
generation revenue.

The Authority's other operating revenue declined by $541 (13.0%) from fiscal year 2020 to
fîscal year 2021. Other operating revenue associated with the CSWS declined by $450 (12.9%)
while the Property and Landfill divisions combined for a reduction of $91.

The $450 (12.9%) reduction in CS\MS other operating revenue is mostly attributable to reduced
recycling revenue within the CSWS. Recycling sales declined by 5776 (44.2%) with settlement
of disputes over operation of the CSV/S Recycling Facility and the associated transition away
from a revenue sharing contract type. Recycling service charges for delivery of recycling by
non-participating municipalities also decreased by $3a0 (J9.5%). These reductions were
partially offset by a $580 (761%) increase in metal sales revenue driven by an 86.0% increase in
the average price the Authority received for its recovered metalso and a 592 (34.1%) increase in
fees for the delivery of bulky waste. CSV/S rental and miscellaneous income declined by $6.

The Authority's member service charges increased by $4,168 (12.4%) from fiscal year 2020 to
fiscal year 202I. All member service charges arç associated with operation of the CSWS. The
tip fee paid by all participating municipalities increased by eight dollars ($8,00) per ton effective
July 1, 2020 (commencement of fiscal year 2021). Total tons of municipal solid waste
("MSV/') delivered by participating municipalities increased by 2.5%.

Table 5 also indicates that non-operating revenue increased by $293 (509%) from fiscal year
2020 to fiscal year 2021. \Mhile fiscal year 2A20 non-operating revenue was dominated by $423
in investment income, fiscal year 2021 was dominated by settlement income of $844
representing insurance reimbursement of legal fees associated with operation of the Recycling
Facility.
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TABLE 5

SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

(Dollan in Thousands)

2021 2021
Increase/ Percent

(Decrease) Increase/
from 2020 (Decrease)2021 2020

4,168
(3472)
(2570)

12.40/o

(36.1û/o)

(9.9o/o)

2020 2020
Increase/ Percent

(Decrease) Increase/
2019 from20l9 (Decrease)

s 31,264 g 2,321 7.40/o

9,5M 79 0.8o/o

33,399 (6,501) (19j%)

Operating Revenues:
Member service charges
Other service charges

Enerry sales

Other operating revenues
Total Operating Revenues

Non-Operating Revenues :

Invesûnent income
Settlement income
Other income

Total Non-Operating Revenues

$ 37,753 $ 33,585 $
6,153 9,625

24,228 26,898

(3e8)

:"
a3
tt:

25

844

(e4.1%)
451.60/o

459
ll,619

(36)
(tr,466)

(7.8%)
(e8.7%)

Total Revenues $ 89,586 $ (l4J3o) (16.4%)

Expenses

Table 6 summaÍizes total expenses
(operating expenses, depreciation and

amortization, and non-operating
expenses) for the three prior fiscal
years ended June 30, 2021. As
indicated, operating expenses decreased
by $gZ+ (1.2%) from fiscal year 2020
to fiscal year 2021. Depreciation and

amortization increased by $2,036
(16.1%) and non-operating expenses
decreased by $854 (37.0%) during this
same period. Total expenses increased
by $308 (0.3%).

The $874 (1.2%) decrease in Operating expenses (before depreciation and amortization) reflects
a $466 (33%) increase in maintenance and utilities expenses more than ofßet by a $783 (L4o/o)

reduction in solid waste operations, a $548 (10.8%) reduction in administrative and operational
services and $9 (15%) reduction in legal services as described below:

o The $466 (3.5%) increase in maintenance and utilities occlrred entirely within the CSWS
where maintenance and utilities expenses increased by $791 (6.L%), The $3,300 accrued

cost to decommission the WTE Facility following suspension of waste combustion
activities is included in this category of expense. Partially offsetting this expense were
reductions to WTE Facility major maintenance activities imposed in response to the

financial impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic and other offsetting reductions driven by the

5.9Vo reduction in waste delivered to the WTE Facility. Substantial components of the

CSWS WTE Facility reached the end of their useful life on June 30, 2019. This brought

s 72,634 $ 74,856 S (2222) (3.0%)

I
I

III
II-
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an end to the process of capitalizing certain major maintenance activities in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2019, effectively increasing maintenance expenses signifìeantly in
fiscal year 2020. Maintçnance and utilities associated with the Property Division
declined by $313 (75.8%) and the Landfill Division declined by $12.

The $783 (1.4%) reduction in solid waste operations expense also occurred entirely
within the CSWS where solid waste operations oxpense declined by 5944 (1.8%). Solid
waste operations expense within the Property Division increased by $98 (6.0%) primarily
due to the cost ofjet fuel, and Landfill Division expenses increased by $63 (171.6%) due
to pollution insurance premium increases.

The decline in CSWS sotid waste operations expense is the net effc."ct of several

significant changes. The nature of operation of the CSWS Recycling Facility changed

from a revenue sharing contract operation to one in which processing fees are paid by the
Authority. This was necessary due to the collapse of recycling commodity markets and

settlement of disputes over the operation of the facility. This resulted in additional
recycling operations expenses of $2,007. The additional $2,156 cost of contraetor
severance the Authority committed to provide in order to secure WTE Facilþ operations
through suspension of waste combustion are also accumulated here. The cost of CSWS
insurance in fiscal year 2021 also increased by 5542. Offsetting these increases were
reductions in WTE Facilþ contract operations expense, ash disposal and other expenses

that can also be traced to the 59% dçcline in waste delivered to the WTE Facility.

The $548 (10.S%) decrease in administrative and operational services expense is centered

within the Landfill Division where these expenses declined by $552 (88.8%). Other
divisions combined for a net increase of $5. The reduction in Landfill Division spending
is directly related to the Authority's efforts to negotiate a Comprehensive Development
Agreement, including legal, engineering and consulting services, that were incurred in
fiscal year 2020 to provide for the redevelopment of the CSWS consistent with DEEP's
Resource Rediscovery initiative. These activities were discontinued in fiscal year 2021
when this initiative concluded unsuccessfully. These expenses were funded through the
Landfill Division.

The $9 (1.5%) decrease in legal services is the result of minor reductions in spending
within the CSWS and Landfill Division.

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased by $2,036 (16,1%) from fiscal year 2020 to
fiscal year 2021. The depreciation schedule for the Jet Peaking Units was aligned with the May
31,2023 expiration of the permit to operate these assets. Additions to the steam turbines and
scheduled completion of depreciation on the WTE Facility's power block also contributed to this
increase. Initially, substantial components of the WTE Facility reached the end of their useful
life on June 30, 2019.

Non-operating expenses decreased by $854 from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021' In fiscal
year 2020, non-operating expenses totaled $2,305 and included $1,975 in final distribution of
surplus funds to Mid Connecticut Project participating municipalities, net sales and disposals of

o

I
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assets (write ofß) totaling $283, payment of Mid Connecticut Project legal fees and other costs

totaling $47. In fiscal year 202t, non-operating expenses primarily represented $1,300 in
settlement expenses associate with operation of the CSWS Recycling Facility.

TABLE 6

SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND NON-OPERATING E}(PENSES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30n

(Dollan in Thousands)

2U2l 2020

2021 2021

Increase/ Percent
(Decrease) Increase/
from2020 (Decrease)

2020 2020
Increase/ Percent

(Decrease) Increase/

2019 from 2019 fl)ecrease)

Operating Expenses:

Solid waste operations

Maintenance and utilitiçs

Legal services - extemal
A&ninistrative and operational services

Total Operating Expenses

Deprecbtion and amortization

Operating Exenses Including Depreciation

and Amortization

Non-Operating Expenses :

Settlement expenses

Distrihrionro SCRRRA
Distribrfion to Towns

Other expenses

Total Non-Operating Expenses

Total Expenses

s 54944 $ (783)

13,501 466

608 (e)

5,074 (548)

$ 59,887 $ (4,%3)

2J8l t0,720
76 532

4,7n 277

$ 54,161

13967

59
4,526

(t.4%)
3.50/,

(r5vù
(10.8%o)

(8.3Òlo)

385.5o/o

7N.ff/o
5.8%

73.253 74Jn (874\ fi.20/o\ 67,541 6,586 9.80/o

14.669 12,633 2-036 16-10/o 39054 (26,421) (67.70/o)

87,922 86,760 1.162 l.3o/o lg6,5el (re,83î (18.64

1,300 1,300

t9 1,975

330

(1,95O
(re8)

nla
n/a

(99.V/o)
(60.v/o)

1,887
(166\

nla
nla

2144.3o/o
(33.5o/o\

88

t32
1.451 2,305 t854) ß7.ú/"\ 584 1,721 294.7%

$ 89373 $ 89,0ó5 $ 308 o.3o/o $ 107,179 $ 08,114) (16.f/o)

496
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Capital Assets

The Authority's investment in
capital assets (net of
açcumulated depreciation) as of
June 30, 2021 tataled $31,863.
This represents a 913,734
(30.1%) reduction from net
capital assets as of June 30,
2020 which totaled fi45,597,
The Authority's investment in
capital assets includes land,
plant, equipment and
construction in progress.

The Authority owns land used
for waste managoment, energy
and related purposes in Bridgeport, Ellington, Hartford, Essex, Shelton, Torringfon, Wallingford,
Waterbury and Watertown. Its plants primarily include the WTE Facility in Hartford, four
transfer stations and a recycling facility. Equipment includes vehicles and machinery used in the

Authority's waste processing and recycling operations. Construction in progress represents

ongoing work for plant and equipment improvements or additions not yet in service. The

substantial decrease in construction in progress reflects the process of no longer capitalizing
certain major maintenance activities conducted within the CSWS 'Waste to Energy Facility.

The reduction in net capital assets primarily reflects the cumulative effect of additions to
construction in progress, less transfcrs out ofconstruction in progress (to put assets into service),
less net sales and disposals and depreciation expense as described more fully in Note 3.

Long-Term Debt Issuanceo Administration and Credit Ratings

As of June 30,2021,the Authority had no outstanding long-term debt carried on its books.
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Economic Factors and Outlook

The most significant economic factors
with the potential to adversely affect
the Authority are its CSWS business

model, the pending loss of surplus
revenue from the Authority's Jet

Peaking Units used to supPort the
CSWS business model, the age and

serviceability of the CSV/S V/TE
Facility and the unsuccessful
conclusion of DEEP's proposed
redevelopment of the CSV/S.

CSWS Business Model

The business model for the CSWS is structured by State statute and municipal service

agreements such that participating town waste disposal fees ("tip fees") are to be set at the level

necessary to fund the net cost of operation of the CSV/S. The net cost of operation is the total

operating budget less non-disposal fee revenue where non-disposal fee revenue primarily

consists of the sale of electricity, recycling activities and disposal fees for waste not contractually

committed to the CSWS ("non-participating towns"). Consequently, price volatility in these

markets directly impacts the tip fees charged to participating towns. Most of the Authority's
participating town contracts include tip fee caps above which the towns may terminate the

contract ("opt-out tip fee").

To support the CSV/S business model, the Authority established a tip fee stabilization fund

which has been drawn upon to subsidize the CSWS when non-disposal fee revenues are low,

thereby avoiding the opt-out tip fee, and which is to be reimbursed as non-disposal fee revenues

rebound. The tip fee stabilization fund was established within the Authority's Property Division
primarily with income from its Jet Peaking Units. However, the Authority's permit to operate

the Jet Peaking Units expires May 31,2023 under DEEP's Phased Compliance Program. Jet

Peaking Unit income peaked in fiscal year 2019 at 516,642 and will decline steadily to

approximately $6,700 in fiscal year 2023, their last year of operation. The cash balance of the tip
fee stabilization fund at June 30,2021 was $1 and a total of $60,163 was reimbursable from the

CSWS contingent upon its future financial performance and availability of surplus funds.

The Authority was successful in establishing tip fees below contractual opt-out provisions from
the inception of the CSWS through adoption of its fiscal year 2017 budget. However, a

sustained erosion of non-disposal fee revenue driven by declining energy pricing and

performance of the V/TE Facility caused the adopted tip fee to exceed the opt-out tip fee for
fiscal years 2018 through 2021. During this period the Authority successfully used the tip fee

stabilization fund to limit these increases and no CSWS participating towns opted out of the

contract, effectively preserving organized demand for a potential CSWS redevelopment.

However, with the unsuccessful conclusion of DEEP's proposed CSWS redevelopment, three
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towns opted out of the contract upon adoption of a one hundred five dollar ($105.00) municipal

tip fee for fïscal year 2022 (East Hartford, Roxbury and North Branford).

The adopted budget for fiscal year 2022 reflected a fourteen dollar ($14.00) per ton increase in
participating town tip fees as well as continued subsidy from the tip fee stabilization fund.

Property Division income and reserves, substantially attributed to the Jet Peaking Units, will
continue to flow to this fund in fiscal year 2A22.

Age and Serviceability of the CSrilS Waste to Energy Facility

Substantial components of the WTE Facility reached the scheduled end of their useful life on

June 30, 2019 and are fully depreciated. Remaining components have since been fully
depreciated. The facility's age and serviceability is readily apparent in its fiscal yeat 2021

performance trends. In fiscal year 2021, the WTE Facility's average monthly combined boiler
availability was 60.0% meaning that, on average, each of the facility's three boilers were

unavailable 40.0% of the time due to equipment failure and major maintenance requirements.

There are also increasing occasions where reduced waste flow, caused by economic contraction
and increased tip fees, also prompted boiler unavailability. During fiscal year 2021 the WTE
Facility received 488,285 tons of MSW delivered under municipal and hauler contracts, a30,677
ton (5.9%) reduction in deliveries from fiscal year 2020. In fiscal year 2021, the facility
generated 250.08 million kilowatt hours of energy, a 22,58 million kilowatt hour (8.3%)

reduction from fiscal year 2020.

Unsuccessful Conclusion of DEEPos Proposed Redevelopment of CSWS

In fiscal year 2014, the State passed Public Act 14-94 (the 'oAct") forming the Authority and

designating it as successor to the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (CRRA). One of
the core objectives of the Act was to set a process in motion, with specific roles and deadlines for
the Authority, DEEP and the private sector that would bring about the redevelopment of the

CSWS. Major milestones included completion of a two-phase Request for Proposals (RFP)
process, legislative reports and public hearings culminating in DEEP's selection of a prefened
proposal and its December 31,2017 direction to the Authority to enter into an agreement for the

redevelopment of the CSV/S with its selected respondent (the Sacyr Rooney Recovery Team,

LLC or '.SRRT"). The original SRRT proposal represented a 5222 million investment in the

refurbishment of the WTE Facility together with the incoqporation of new ooDiversion

Technology" which would include new mechanical and biological treatment facilities and an

aerobic digester and be provided at a reduced tip fee. DEEP's initial objective was that a
contract providing for the redevelopment be executed by July 1, 2018. The redeveloped CSWS
was expected to commence operations by July 1, 2023.

During fiscal years 2018 and2019, the Authority actively engaged in negotiations with SRRT

aimed at bringing the proposed redevelopment project to fruition in a manner consistent with its
municipal service agreements, the contracting requirements of its enabling legislation, relevant
provisions of the Act and DEEP's RFP. Key topics addressed included financial feasibility,
project structuring, governance and risk allocation, disposition and use of surplus revenue and

municipal tip fees. The discussions culminated at the close of fiscal year 2019 with agreement
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on a Memorandum of Understanding outlining the roles and responsibilities of each party for
each of these areas. The MOU also established a November 15,2019 deadline for the execution

of a fully developed term sheet, ffid an October 15, 2020 deadline for execution of a

Comprehensive Development Agreement.

Druing fiscal year 2020, the Authority and SRRT completed additional due diligence and

executed a fully developed term sheet consistent with the MOU which included detailed

financial and demand forecasts as well as the tipping fees required to support the project. The

term sheet called for a one hundred forty five dollar ($1+S¡ per ton tip fee upon completion of
construction and annual escalation thereafter. Upon execution of the term sheet, the Authority
actively sought to secure long term municipal waste commitments reflecting the required tþing
fees. These efforts included statewide, regional and individual municipal presentations and

surveys setting forth the municipal commitments and tip fees necessary to finance the Project.

The Authority was not successful in securing these commitments as the tipping fee was

considered too high and length of commitment to the project too long. The Authority then

sought additionat support for the project from the State in the form of energy price support, State

bond support or demand support (through "flow control"). The Authority drafted and

aggressively pursued proposed legislation in each of these areas. The Authorþ advised SRRT

that, in the absence of such State support, the project was not viable and the Authority would
withdraw from further negotiations and terminate the Term Sheet.

Early in fiscal year 2021, the State formally rejected any such support. Accordingly, the

Authority withdrew from further negotiations and terminated the term sheet. To ensure the

continuance of waste management services to its CSWS participating municipalities, the

Authority also immediately issued an RFP for operation and potential redevelopment of the

CSWS Recycling Facility and commenced planning and contracting activities necessary to

suspend waste combustion and transition the WTE Facility to a more reliable waste transfer

operation. The current status of these initiatives is summarized below:

Ç

a

The Authority has concluded its RFP process for the CSWS Recycling Facility and entered

into a contract with Murphy Road Recycling to operate it as a recycling transfer facility
effective from May 1,2021 through the June 30,2027 expiration of the CSV/S Municipal
Service Agreements.
The Authority issued two RFPs for the transportation and disposal of four hundred and thirty
thousand (430,000) tons of municipal solid waste annually commencing as early as January

1,2022 and ending June 30,2027. The RFPs were issued May 14,2021. One RFP was

targeted at other regional waste to energy or transfer facilities and the other was targeted at

out of state landfills. Proposals were received August 25,2021" and are being evaluated.

The Authority issued an RFP for the operation, maintenance and optional future development
of CSWS Transfer Facilities on June 16,202I. This RFP envisions the suspension of waste

combustion and commencement of transfer operations in Hartford effective July l, 2022.
Proposals are due September 20,2021and will be evaluated upon receipt.
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REQUESTS Ì'OR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to.provide a general overview of the Authority's finances for all
thosc with an intçrest in the Authority's finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Chiçf
Financial Officer, 200 Corporate P[ace, Rocky Hill CT 06061,
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MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30,2021 AND JI.INE 30,2O2O

(Dollars in Thousands)

EXHIBIT I
Page I of2

2021 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowances
Inventory
Prepaid expensçs

Total Unrestricted Assets

Restricted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON.CT]RRENT ASSETS
Capiùal Assets:

Depreciable, net
Nondepreciable

Total Capital Assets

TOTAL NON.CURRENT ASSETS

TOTALÀSSETS

$ 33,199
7,595
5,572

?,729

, 49,095

$ 31,991
6,958
5,833
2,430

47,212

1,103

50,198

5,581

26,282
31,863

31,863

82,061

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements

230

47,442

18,746

26,851
45,597

45.597

93,039
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MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCTING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (Continued)
AS OF',JUNE 3U2021AND JUNE 30,2020

(Dollars in Thousands)

EXHIBIT I
Page2 oï2

20202021
LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from Unrestricted Assets:

, 
Accounts payable

Acccrued cxpenses and other cuffent liabilities
Unearned rcvenue

Total Payable from Unresficted Assets

Payable from Restricted Assets:

Acccrued expenses and other çuffent liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LI,ÀBILITIES

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Payable ftom Unrestricted Assets:

Other liabilities

TOTÄL LONG.TDRM LTABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIBS

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTÀL NET POSITION

$ $1,390
8,801

38

1,973
3,330

38

10,229 5,341

1,052 179

ll,28l 5,520

I1,281 5,520

31,863

38,866

45,597

5l
4t,871

51

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements

70,780 S 87,519
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MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

STATEMDNTS OF RDVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2021 AND 2O2O

(Dollars in Thousands)

202t

EXHIBIT II

2020

Operating Revenues

Service charges:

Members
Others

Energy sales

Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Solid waste operations
Maintenance and utilities
Legal services - external
Administrative and Operatlonal services

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income before depreeiation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization

Operating Loss

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income
Settlement income
Settlement cxpenses, not
Distributions to towns
Other revenues (expenses), net

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses), Net

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position, beginning of year

Total Net Position, end of year

$ 37,753
6,153

24,228
3,631

33,585
9,625

26,898
4,172

$

71,765 74,280

54,161
13,967

599
4,526

73,253

54,944
13,501

608
s.074

74,127

(1,488)

14,669

153

12,633

(16,157)

25

844
(1,300)

(le)
(t321

(12,480)

423
153

(1,975)

(330)
(s82) , (1,729\

(14,209)(16,739)

87,519 r01 728

$ 70.780 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements

87,5 r9
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MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTTIORITY
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

, STATtrMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR lHE YEARS ENDDD JUNE 30,2021 AND 2020

(Dollars in Thousands)

2021

$

EXHIBIT III

2020

Cash Flows Provided by (Used ln) Operating Activities
Pa)¡ments received from providing services

Payments to suppliers and employees

Distributions to towns
Settlcmcnt income (expenses)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities
lnterest on investments

ñet Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Capital and Related Í'inancing Activities
Proceeds from sales of equipment
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end ofyear

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:

Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation of capital assets

Other income (expenses), net
Changes in æsets and liabilities, net of transfers:

(lncrease) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements

71,129
(67,s31)

(23)
(4s6)

77,624
(73,547)

(1,975)
153

$

3.119 2,255

2S 423
tt 423

(1)
(1,062)
(1,063)

2,081

32,221

(1,835)
(1.835)

843

3l,378

$ 34,302 S 32,221

$ (l6,ls7) $ (12,480)

14,669
(47e)

(636)

261
(zee)

5,760

12,633
(1,822)

4, 125
(54)

57

(204)

s s,119 $ 2,255
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Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Entity and Senices

The Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (the "Authority") was created by the State of
Connecticut (the "State") under Public Aet 14-94 (the 'oAct"). The Authority constitutes a successor

authority to the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (ooCRRA"¡ which was created in 1973 under
Chapter 446e of the State Statutes. The Authority is a public instrumentality and political subdivision of
the State and is included as a component unit in the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The Authority became CRRA's successor effective June 6, 2014 when it assumed control over all of
CRRA's assets, rights, duties and obligations and continued CRRA's ongoing business. The Act and
related statutes outlined below specified the transfer of responsibilities from CRRA to the Authority in a
manner that assured continuity.

The Authority's designation as CRRA's successor did not represent a gtaît of new authority by
the State. The Authority replaced CRRA and CRRA no longer exists;

Any effective orders or regulations of CRRA remain effective under the govemance of the

Authorþ;

To the extent that CRRA \¡/as a party to any action or proceeding (civil or criminal), the

Authority was substituted for CRRA in that action or proceeding;

Any contract, right of action or matter undertaken or commenced by CRRA is now being

undertaken and completed by the Authority;

o

a

The officers and employees of CRRA have been transferred to the Authority; and

All property of CRRA was delivered to the Authority.

The Authority is authorized to have a board consisting of eleven directors and two ad-hoc members from
each municipality that is the site of an Authorify facility. The Governor appoints three directors and all
ad-hoc members. The remaining eight directors are appointed by various state legislative leaders. Five of
the directors are required by statute to be municipal officials, two from municipalities with populations
of more than fifty-thousand, and three from municipalities with populations of fifty-thousand or less. All
appointments require the advice and consent of both houses of the General Assembly. During fiscal year
2021, the Authority's board included officials from seven municipalities that receive solid waste disposal
services from the Authority.

In addition, the statutory structure of the Authority, which is a component unit of the State of
Connecticut, and of the Authority's board, which includes representatives of municipalities and
customers served by the Authority, results in transactions with related parties and related organizations
that occur in the ordinary course ofoperations.

a

a

a
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Materials InnovatÍon and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,202I AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIT,S (Conrínued)

A. Entity and Services (Contìnued)

The State Treasurer continues to approve the issuance of all Authority bonds and notes. The State has
been contingently liable to restore deficiencies in debt service reserves established for certain Authorþ
bonds. However, with maturity of the Authority's 2010 Series A Southeast Project Refunding Bonds on
November 15,2015, there is no longer any contingent liability of the State associated with the Authority.
The Authority has no taxing power.

Under the Act, the Authority's purpose continues to be the planning, design, constructiono financing,
management, ownership, operation and maintenance of solid waste disposal, volume' reduction,
recycling, intermediate processing, resource recovery and related support facilities necessary to carry out
the State's Solid V/aste Management Plan, The Authorþ continues to provide solid waste management
services to municipalities, regions and persons within the State by receiving solid wastes at Authority
facilities, recovering resourçes from such solid wastes, and generating revenues from such services
sufficient for the Authority to operate on a self-sustaining basis,

The Act established a new consultative partnership betwçen the Authorþ and the State's Department of
Energy and Environmental Protection ("DEEP"), specifically for redevelopment of the duthorþ's
Connecticut Solid Waste System ("CSWS") described belowo which concluded unsuccessfully in fiscal
year 2021, and generally for the development of new waste management industries, technologies and

commercial enterprises on property owned by the Authority. The Act charged DEEP with revising the
State's solid waste management plan and undertaking these consultative efforts consistent with the
revised plan. The Act also transferred responsibility for statewide recycling education to a newly created
ooRecycle CT Foundation". The Authority ceased providing educational facilities and services to its
customers as of June 30,2016.

CRRA's original core mission was to develop a network of resource recovery and related facilities within
the State to move the State away from the process of landfilling its municipal solid waste. Facilities were
constructed in Preston, Hartford, Bridgeport and Wallingford, Connecticut, which have historically been
known as the Southeast, Mid Connecticut, Bridgeport and Wallingford projects, respectively. CRRA
secured financing, facility developer, operator and customer contracts, and administered these projects
throughout their various stages over the last four decades. While the initial underlying contracts for the
Southeast Project remained in effect at the time the Authority was created, the Authority fully concluded
its role in the Southeast Project duriág fiscal year 2018. Underlying contracts for the Mid Connecticut,
Bridgeport and Wallingford projects had previously expired and resulted in a distribution and/or
reformation of project assets which formed the foundation for CRRA's core project / division and
financial structure at the time of assumption by tlre Authorþ. The Authority continues to recognize
CRRA's projects / divisions and financial structure outlined below.

Mi4 C.o4+ecticut Proigct and tþe Conr.recticut Solid Waste Svstem - CRRA retained title to the
rçsource recovery facility in Hartford (South Meadows), all support facilities and land when the initial
underlying project contracts expired for the Mid Connecticut Project on November 15, 2012. No property
transferred to the private sector. CRRA assigned these assets to its Property Division and put them into
service in the form of the Connecticut Solid Waste System. Assets in service to the CSWS include the
resource recovery facility, four transfer stations and a major recycling facility. During Fiscal Year 2021

28



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI&S (Contínued)

A. Entity and Services (Contlnued)

CSWS provided solid waste disposal services to 52 Connecticut municipalities and 37 private waste

haulers under contract with the Authorify.

The CSWS is the primary operating division of the Authority and is the only publicly owned, fully
controlled waste disposal system in the State. All operating revenues and expenses of the CSWS, other

than depreciation and mofüzation of assets, are assigned to the CSWS division. Prior Mid Connecticut
Project assets not in service to the CSWS include the now closed Education and Trash Museum and

certain jet turbine powered elechic generating peaking units. All revenues and expenses associated with
the assets not in service to CSWS are assigned to the Property Division. The Mid Connecticut Projoct

remains active administratively only for project close out activities including application of approved

project dishibutions to current CSWS customer accounts.

Pronertv Division - All Capital Assets retained by CRRA upon expiration of the Mid Connectiout and

Bridgeport projects other than those associated with landfills have been assigned to this division. The

division derives operating income primarily from the lease of property and the sale of jet turbine electrio
generating capacity in various ISO New England energy markets. The Authority has assumed CRRA's
interests and obligations in the Property Division and reports this activity consistent with the structure

noted above.

Landfill Division - As of June 6, 2014, the Authority assumed CRRA's ownership interests in three

closed landfills in the State, and certain adjoining properties, which have been assigned to the Landfill
Division. Certain plant and equipment installations associated with these landfills, and the leased

Hartford landfill, were also assigned to this division. The Authorþ has also assumed CRRA's interests

and obligations pursuant to State statute and agreement with DEEP concerning the transfer of CRRA's
landfill post closure care obligations to DEEP and the transfer of funds reserved for post closure care

activities to the State. See Note 4 for additional information.

During fîscal year 2016 the Authority's lease and subsequent Short Term Access Agreement for the

Hartford Landfill expired resulting in the transfer of associated plant and equipment to the City of
Hartford. Ownership of the solar anay installed by the Authority on top of the Hartford landfill remains

with the Authority subjeot to a new Long Term Site Access and Revenue Sharing Agreement with the

City of Hartford. The Authorþ's financial interests and activities concerning this solar array are

recognized within the Landfill Division.

B. Measurement Í'ocus, Basis of Accountingo and Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (*GAAP") as applied to government entities. The

Governmental Acoounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The Authority is considered to be an Enterprise Fund. The Authority's activities are accounted for using
a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and

ex'enses' 
zg



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF'ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contínued)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of AccountÍngo and Basis of Presentation (Contìnued)

Enterprise funds are established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner

similar to private business enterprises, where the intent is that the costs of providing goods or services on

a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily thlough user charges.

The Authority's fînancial statements are prepared using an economic resources measurement focus and

the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when

incurred.

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the disposal of solid
waste. The principal operating revenues of the Authority are charges to customers for user services and

sales of electricity inctuding energy generation and participation in forward capacity and reserve markets

managed by ISO New England. Operating expenses include the cost of solid waste operations,

maintenance and utilities, administrative expenses, rebates and distribution of funds associated with
active Authority projects and divisions (CSWS, Property and Landfill divisions) and depreciation on

capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses including distribution of funds associated with the closeout of inactive projects.

C. Estimates

The preparation of fïnancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the balance sheets and the reported amounts of revenues

and expenses during the reporting period. Such estimates are subsequently revised as deemed necessary

when additional information becomes available. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. Cash and Cash Equlvalents

All unrestricted and restricted highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when

purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.
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Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2921AND 2020

t. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC\Î'S (Contínued)

E. Receivables, Net

Receivables are shown net of an allowance for the estimated portion that is not expected to be collected.

The Authority performs ongoing credit evaluations and generally requires a guarantee of payment form
of collateral from non-municipalities. The Authority has established an allowanoe for the estimated

portion that is not expected to be collected of $54,285 and $48,900 at June 30, 2021 and 2020
respectively.

Fiscal Year

2021

($ooo)

2020

($ooo¡

1,390

1,8Íe

$ 7,595

$-
9

11

t52
1,319

5,467

Total $ 6,958

F. Inventory

The Authority's spare parts inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value using the
weighted-average costing method. The Authorþ's fuel inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value using a first-in first-out (FIFO) method. lnventories at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are

summarized as follows:

Fiscal Year

Inventories

Receívables, net of allowances

Payroll Adjustnent
læases

Contractor

Insurance

Electricity

Disposal & Connnodity Sales

Spare Parrts

Fuel
$ 5,300 $ 5,184

649

$ s,s72 $

$ I
a

353

2021
($ooo)

2020

($ooo)

272

Total

3l

5,833



Materials InnovatÍon and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIF,S (Contínued)

G. Investments

Investrnents are reported at fafu value (generally based on quoted market prioes), except for investments

in certain external investment pools that are permitted to be reported at the net asset value per share as

determined by the pool. Interest on investments is recorded as revenue in the year the interest is earned.

If. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consists'of cash and cash equivalents restricted for use by enabling legislation or by
externally imposed restrictions by oreditors, grantors or laws and regulations. MIRA's restricted assets

consist of customer guarantees of payment and trust*pooled funds.

I. Development Costs

Costs incuned during the development stage of an Authority project, including, but not limited to, initial
planning and permitting are capitalized. When the project begins commercial operation, the development

costs are amortized using the straight'line method over the estimatcd life of the project. Costs incurred
duringthe preliminary project states, including certain legal fees, are expensed as incurred.

The Authority has no unamortized development costs that have been capitalized as of June 30,2021 and

202Q.

J. Capital Assets

Capital assets with a useful life in excess of one year are capitalized at historical cost. Depreciation of
exhaustible capital assets is charged as an expense against operations. Depreciation is charged over the

estimated useful life of the asset using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of capital
assets are as follows:

Capital Assets Years

Resources Recovery Buildings

Other Buildings

Resources Recovery Equipment

Gas and Steam Turbines

Recycling Equipment

Rolling Stock and Automobiles

Office and Other Equipment

Roadways

30

20

30

10-20

lo
5

3-5

20
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Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 3Û,2021AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contínued)

J. Capital Assets (Contínued)

The Authority's capitalization threshold for property, planto and equipment is $5,000 and for office
fr¡rniture and equipment is $1,000. Improvementso renewals, and significant repairs that extend the useful
life of a capital asset are capitalized; other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. When

capital assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the related asset and accumulated depreciation is

written off and any related gains or losses are recorded

The Authority reviews its capital assets used in operations for impairment when prominent events or
changes in circumstances that may be indicative of impairment of a capital asset has occurred. The

Authority records impairment losses and reduces the carrying value of a capital asset when both the

decline in service utilþ of the capital asset is large in magnitude and the event or a change in
circumstances is outside the normal life cycle of the capital asset. During the years ended June 30,202I
and 2020, no impairment losses were recognized. Substantial components of the Connecticut Solid
Waste System's waste to energy facility reached the end of their useful life on June 30, 2019 andhave
been fully depreciated. The facility remains in operation and the Authority is contractually committed to
process waste for the Connecticut municipalities through Jlur:.e 30,2027.

Construction in progress includes all associated cumulative costs of a constructed capital asset and

deposits held by third parties for capital purchases. Construction in progress is relieved at the point at

which an asset is placed in service for its intended use.

K. CompensatedAbsences

The Authority's liability for vested accumulated unpaid vacation and personal amounts is included in
accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the accompanying statements of net position. The

liability for compensated absences at ilune 30,202I and 2020 and the related changes for the years ended

June 30, 202I and2020 arc presented in thc following table. Compensated absences include accruals for
salarieso employer taxes, employer's 40lK retirement plan contributions and employer's matching
contributions:

Compensated Absences

Accrued vacation and personaltime $ 516

Balance at

Juþ l, Increases

2019 (Decreases)

($ooo) ($ooo)

$8e

$89

$605$9$614

Balance at

June 30,

2020
($000)

Increases

(Decreases)

($000)

Balance at

June 30,

2021

($0oo)

$ $9 614

-

Total $ 516

JJ

$ 605



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A ComponentUnit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

1. SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conrínued)

K. Compensated Absences (Continued)

Compensated absences do not include estimates of the Authority's liability pursuant to its severance

policies applicable in the event of any employee separation without cause as a result of position

elimination, reorganization, restructuring and reduction in force.

L. Net Position

The Authority's net position is reported in one of the following three components:

Net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced

by the outstanding balances of bonds that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. Net investment in capital assets totaled approximately $31.9 million and

$45.6 million as of June 30,2021and2020.

Restricted net position, consists of the portion of net position that has been either restricted by enabling
legislation or that contain various externally imposed restrictions by creditorso grantors or laws and

regulations. Restricted net position totaled approximately $51,000 and $51,000 as of June 3A,202I and

2020, respectively. None of the Authority's net position has been restricted by enabling legislation.

(Jnrestricted net positíon, consists of the portion of net position not included in the other components of
net position and has been divided into designated and undesignated portions. Designated net position

represent the Authority's self-imposed limitations on the use of otherwise unrestricted net position.

Unrestricted net position has been designated by the Board of Directors of the Authority for various
purposes. Such designations totaled approximately $19,2 million and $24.0 million as of June 30,2021
and 2020, respectively.
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Materíals Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contìnued)

L. Net Positlon (Continued)

Unrestricted net position at June 30,2A21 and2020 are summarized as follows:

Unrestricted Net Position 2021 2020

($oqo) ($ooq)

Undesignated $ 19,674 .$. 17,829

Designated

Authority:

Severance Fund 2,541 2,479

hoperty Division:

General Fund

Improvement Fund- PD

Improvement Fund - CSWS

Tip fee stabilization

Jets major maintanence

Mid-Connecticut;

Post project closure

CSWS:

Debt Service Fund

Future Ins s Contingencies

General Fund

Iægal Fund

CS\MS Major Maintenance

I¿ndfill Division:

H¿rtford solat reserve

Pollution ins uranoe res erve

11,064

260

2t9

I

964

14,r93

234

465

1,885

1,153

23

4

896

I

638

1,548

24,042

$ 41,871æ

4

897

I

639

2,267

335 335

188

19,192

-,$-i!'q66-Total Unrestricted Net Position
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Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

2, CASH DEPOSITS AND II{VESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following as of June 30,2021 and2020:

2021

($ooo¡

2020

($ooo)Cash and Cash Equivalents

Unrestricted:

Cash deposits

Cash equivalents

STIF *

Restricted * current:

Cash deposits

Cash equivalents:

STIF *

Total

$ 8,690 $ 5,591

24,509 26,400

31,991

1,103 230

1,103 230

g 34,302 g 32,22r

33,199

* STIF = Srort-Term Investment Fmdof the State of Connecticut

Cash Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority will not be able to
recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an

outside party.
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Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Cash DeposÍts - Custodial Credit R:isk (Continued)

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, approximately $9.5 million and $5,5 million, respectively, of the
Authority's bank balance of cash deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Custodial Credit Rìsks

2021

($000)

2020

($000)

Uninsured but collateralized

with securities held by the

pledging bankos trust

department or agent but not in

the Authorityos name $ 1ll3 $ 810

Uninsured and Uncollateralaod 8,079 4,708

Total s 9,492 $5,518

Total represents uninsured Bank of America account balance as

af 6130/21. Uninsured but collateralized equals 14.51% of total

per Bank of America reporting.

Balance represents uninsured and uncollateralund.

All of the Authority's deposits were in qualified public institutions as defined by State statute. Under
this statute, any bank holding public deposits must at all times maintain, segregated from other assets,

eligible collateral in an amount equal to a certain percentage of its public deposits. The applicable
percentage is determined based on the bank's risk-based capital ratio. The amount of public deposits is

determined based on either the public deposits reported on the most recent quarterly call report, or the
average of the public deposits reported on the four most recent quarterly call reports, whichever is
greater. The collateral is kept in the custody of the trust department of either the pledging bank or
another bank in the name of the pledging bank.

Inyestments

Investments in the State of Connecticut Short-Term Investment Fund ("STIF") as of June 30,2021 and
2020 arc included in cash and cash equivalents in the accompanying statements of net position. For
purposes of disclosureo such amounts are considered investments and have been included in the
investment disclosures that follow.
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Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 3A,2021AND 2020

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND IIIVESTMENTS (Contìnued)

Investments (Continued)

Inlerest Rate Risk

As of June 30,2021, the Authority's investments consisted of the following debt securities:

Investment Maturities

Years

Investment

Type

Net Asset

Value
($ooo¡

Ito 6to
510

Less

than

I

More
than

l0

STIF s 24,509 $ 24,509 $ $ $

Total $ 24.509 $ 24.s09 S $ s

As of June 30,2020, the Authority's investments consisted of the following debt securities:

Investment Maturities

Years

Investment

Type

Net Asset

Value
($000)

I to 6to
510

Less

than

1

More

than

10

STIF $ 26,400 $ 26,400 $ $ $

Total $ 26,400 s 26.400 s $ s

STIF is an investment pool of short-term money market instruments that may include adjustable-rate
federal âgency and foreign government securities whose interest rates vary directly with short-term
money market indices and are generally reset daily, monthly, quarterly, and semi-annually. The

adjustable-rate securities have similar exposures to credit and legal risks as fixed-rate securities from the

same issuers. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

As of June 30,2021 and2020, STIF had a weighted average maturity of 31 and 16 days respectively.

The Authority's investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its

exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The Authority is limited to
investment maturities as required by specific bond resolutions or as needed for immediate use .or
disbursement. Those funds not included in the foregoing may be invested in longer-term securities as

authorized in the Authority's ínvestment policy. The primary objectives of the Authority's investment
policy are the preservation of principal and the maintenance of liquidity.
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Materials Innovatlon and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

fnvestment s (Contínued)

Credit Rish

Connecticut state statutes permit the Authority to invest in obligations of the United States, includirtg its
instrumentalities and agencies; in obligations of any state or of any political subdivision, authority or
agency thereof, provided such obligations are rated within one of the top two rating categories of any

recognized rating service; or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or of any political subdivision
thereof, provided such obligations are rated within ône of the top three rating categories of any

recognized rating service.

As of June 30,202I,the Authorþ's investments were rated as follows:

Fair Moody's

Seourity Value Standard Investor
($000) & Poor's Service

STIF

Not
Rated

As of June 30,2020, the Authority's investments were rated as follows:

Fitch

Ratinss

Security

Fair

Value
($000)

Standard

& Poor's

Moody's

Investor

Service

Not
Rated

Fitch

Ratinss

$ 24,509 tuqAm

Not
Rated

Not
Rated

CustodíøI Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterpartyo the

Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority's investment policy does not include provisions for
custodial credit risk, as the Authority does not invest in securities that are held by counterparties. None
of the Authority's inúestments require custodial credit risk disclosures. STIF is not subject to regulatory
oversight nor is it registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company.

Concentratíon of Credít Risk

The Authority's investment policy places no limit on the amount of investment in any one issuer, but
does require diversþ of the investment portfolio if investments are made in non-U.S. government or
U.S. agency securities to eliminate the risk of loss of over-concentration of assets in a specific class of
security, a speoific maturity and/or a specific issuer. The asset allocation of the investment portfolio
should, howevero be flexible enough to assure adequate liquidity for Authorþ needs. As of June 30,

2021 and 2020, all of the Authority's investments are in STIF, which is rated in the highest rating
category by Standard & Poor's and provides daily liquidþ, thereby satisfuing the primary objectives of
the Authority's investment policy.
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Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A ComponentUnit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 3o,2o2l AND 2o2o

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2021 and2020:

Balance at

June 30,2020
($000)

$

Additions
($000)

Tfansfers
($oo0)

Sales and

Disposals
Balance at

June 30n 2021
($000)

$ $ $ $

DepreciaHe assets:

Plant
Equipment

Total at cost

Iæs s accumulated depreciation for:
Plant
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciaHe assets, net

NonùpreciaHe assets:

Iand
C¡ nstruction-in-pro gres s

Total nondepreciable assets

Total depreciable and

nondepreciable assets

1,631 (560) 462,908

213,61.6

248,215 6 1,631 (560)
2t3,616

249,292

461,831

(4e8)

(14,1691

04,66n

18,746 . (14ó6r)

26,239

(212,831)

(230,254) 425
Q13,329)
Q43,998)

912

, 26,851

r,962
1,062

1,631

(1,631)

425

(l3sl
(457,327l.

5,581

26,239

26482
43

$ 45,597 $ (1359e) s-$fl35ì $ 31,863

Balnnce at
June 30,2019 Addtions

($000)
Transfers

($000)

Sales and

Disposals
($0oo)

Balance at
June 30,2020

($000)

Depreciable âssets:

Plant
Equipment

Total at cost

I¡s s accumulated depreclation for:
Plant

Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total depreciaHe assetsn net

NondepreciaHe assets:

I¿nd
C.ons tructio n-in-pro gres s

Total nondepreciaHe ass ets

Total depreciable and

nondepneciaHo åssets

$ 213,605

246,530
$43

5,724

(32) $
(4,046) $

213,616

248,215

$ $

7

460,135 7 5,767 (4"078) 461,831

(211,86r)

Q22.38s)

(e8e)

(t 1,645)

(r2,634',)

t9
3,776

3,795

(283)

(2 12,83 l)

(434,246)

(230,254)

'r-4Æpfl
25,889 (12,627) 5,767 t8;746

26,239

4,5M

30,783

1,831 
.

1,935

(5,767).

(s,7671

26,239

612

26,85r

$ s6.672 $ ú0.792)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

4. LONG.TERM LIABILITIES F'OR CLOSURE AND POST.CLOSURD CARE OF
LANDFILLS

The Authority has historically operated five landfîlls located within the State. Three landfïlls (located in

Ellington, Waterbury and Shelton) are owned in fee simple by the Authority and two landfills (located in

Hartford and Wallingford) were leased by the Authority.

Federal, State and local regulations required the Authority to place final cover on its landfills when it
stopped accepting waste at them (closure obligations), ffid to perform certain maintenance and

monitoring functions for periods that may extend thirty years after closure (post closure obligations).

Accordingly, the Authority has previously estimated its liability for closure and post-closure care costs

and recorded any increases or decreases to the liabilþ as an operating expense.

During the year ended June 30, 2014, pursuant to the State of Connecticut's Public Act 13-247 and

Section 99 of Public Act 13-184, the Authority transferred $35.8 million in post closure care obligations

for all of its landfîlls to the State's Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (DEEP) and

concurrently transferred $31.0 million of its landfill reserve accounts and trust funds to the State's

General Fund. The Authority's closure obligation for the Hartford landfïll was not transferred to DEEP.

As of June 30, 2014, all five of the Authority's landfills had no capacity available since 100% of their

capacity had been used, and all landfills other than Hartford had been closed in compliance with
applicable Federal, State and local regulations.

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Authorþ completed closure of the Hartford landfill in

compliance with applicable Federal, State and local regulations. Accordingly, the Authority no longer

includcs liabilities associated with the post closure or closure care of any Authority landfills as these

obligations were either assumed by DEEP during the year ended June 30, 2014 or have been completed

by the Authority.

There were no capital assets transforred pursuant to these statutes. While the Authority retains fee

simple ownership of the Ellington, Waterbury and Shelton landfills and related assets, the associated post

closure care obligations have been assumed by DEEP. The Hartford landfill lease expired during the

year ended June 30, 2015 (upon completion of the Authority's closure obligations) and its surviving post

closure care obligations have been assumed by DEEP. The 'Wallingford Landfïll lease previously

expired and its surviving post closure care obligations have been assumed by DEEP.

The Authority had no liabilities for landfill closure and post-closure sare of landfills as of June 30,2021
and2020.

5. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Nextera Energy Power Marketing is the Authority's customer for fixed price (hedged) energy sales and

certain Class tr renewable energy credits from the Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS) and

represented 4.5%o and 9.2% of total operating revenues for the years ended June 30, 2A2l and2020,
respectively.
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5. MAJOR CUSTOMER:S (Contínued)

ISO New England is the Authority's custonler for non-hedged energy sales, as well as forward capacity

and reserve market sales, from the Connecticut Solid Waste System and the Properfy Divisions Peaking

Units and represented 29.1% and26,9% of total operating revenues for the years ended June30,202I
and 2020, respectively.

Nextera Energy Power Marketing also acts as the Authority's designated Lead Market Participant and

Generation Asset Owner for ISO New England to provide scheduling, bidding and marketing services

with respect to all CSWS and Property Division energy described above.

Service charge revenues from All Waste, lnc. totaled 12.4% and I3.0Vo of the Authority's operating

revenues for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

6. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Authority is the Administrator of its 401(k) Employee Savings Plan. This defined contribution
retirement plan covers all eligible ernployees.

Under the Amended and Restated 401(k) Employee Savings Plan, effective July 1, 2000, Authority
contributions are five percent of payroll plus a dollar for dollar match of employees' contributions up to
fîve percent of employee wages. Authority contributions for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
amounted to approximately S291,000 and $288,000, respectively. Employees contributed approximately

$293,000 to the plan during the year ended June 30, 2021 and $273,000 to the plan during the year ended

June 30, 2020.

In addition, the Authority is a participating employer in the State of Connecticut's defïned contribution
457(b) Plan, which allows Authority employees to participate in the State of Connecticut's deferred

compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 . All amounts of
compensation deferred under the 457(b) plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and

all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of
the plan participants and their beneficiaries. The Authority holds no fiduciary responsibility for the plan;

rather, fiduciary responsibility rests with the State Comptroller's office.

The Authority has no other post-employment benefït plans as of June 30,2021 and2020.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss. The Authority endeavors to purchase commercial
insurance for all insurable risks of loss that can be done so at reasonable expense. This includes

insurance coverage for property, general liabilþ, pollution, auto, umbrella, workers eomp, public
officials, crime and frduciary. The CSWS waste-to-energy facility has historically been the Authority's
highest valued single facility. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the
past three (3) fiscal years. However, there have been significant reductions in insurance coverage from
the prior three years.

42



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021AND 2020

7, RISK MANAGEMENT (Contínued)

During fiscal year 2019 the Authority sustained property damage to its two steam turbines associated
with operation of the CSWS Waste to Energy Facility and recognized insurance proceeds of $11.6
million from related business interruption, extra expense and property damage insurance coverages. The

amounts \ilere reported as settlement income for the year ended June 30, 2019. As a result of these

claims, certain deductibles increased effective January 1,2019. The Authority's business intemrption
and extra expense deductible period on these turbines was extended from 45 days to 75 days by insurance

earriers providing fifty percent (50%) of this çoverage. An additional insurance carrier providing fifteen
percent (15%) of the business interruption and extra expense coverage on these turbines extended the
deductible period from 45 days to 60 days. Property damage deductibles on these turbines were
increased from S250,000 to $3 million by insurance caniers providing fifty percent (50%) of this
coverage. An additional insurance carrier providing fifteen percent (15%) of this coyerage increased the
deductible from $250,000 to $1.5 million. Property damage deductibles on the Authority's Jet Peaking
Units were also increased effective January 7,2A19. This deductible was increased from $250,000 to
$1.0 million by insurance carriers providing fïfty percent (50%) of this coverage, and from $250,000 to
$1.5 million by insurance carriers providing fifteen percent (15%) of this coverage.

During fiscal year 2020, due to the Authority's prior claims, and the insurance industry's increased
reluctance to accept the risk profile of waste to energy facilities generally, the Authority was unable to
renew its property damage coverage as initially modified in response to the steam turbine claims noted
above. A prominent insurance carrier that historically held 50% of the Authority's property damage

coverage declined to renew at all and had to be replaced by multiple carriers in a tiered coverage
approach. The Authority was forced to eliminate business intemrption and extra expense, and increase
its deductibles to $10 million, as part of it efforts to secure continued properfy damage coverage. These

changes were effective January 1,2020. As of January 1,2020, the Authority possesses approximately
94Yo covetage for atotal loss pursuant to this tiered approach subject to these deductibles and excluding
business interruption and extra expense. The percentage of coverage varies based on the amount of claim
from a low of approximately 80% to a high of 100%.

This structure for the Authority's property insurance was maintained in place through expiration in
March 202L However, during fiscal year 202l,the property insurance market for waste to energy
facilities worsened, DEEP's Resource Rediscovery initiative to redevelop the CSWS Waste to Energy
Facility concluded unsuccessfully, prompting the Authority to commence planning and contracting
activity to transition to waste transfer operations, and the CSWS Recycling Facility was converted into a
recycling trânsfer operation. Accordingly, effective March 30,2021through July 1, 2022the Authority
renewed property insurance for the CSWS transfer stations, Hartford solar array, 171 Murphy Road and
its home offïce. Excluded from the renewal due to lack of market participation and other noted factors
was the CSWS Waste to Energy Facility, CSWS Recycling Facility and the Jet Peaking Units. This
change resulted in a substantial reduction to the Authority's schedule of values, deductibles and
premiums. The CSWS Recycling Facility was subsequently added to this policy following its conversion
to a recycling transfer operation in July 2021.

The Authority has renewed its Pollution Legal Liability generally consistent with historic coverage
amounts effective July l, 2020 through July 1,2023.
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The Authority has also renewed its casualty and executive liability policies effective July 1, 2A2l through
June 30, 2022. These include general and auto liability / physical damage, workers compensation, public

officials, crime, fiduciary, umbrella and excess coverage and were renewed generally consistent with
historic coverage amounts except that an additional $4 million in sub-limits on breach of contract
coverage was incorporated, an exclusion for class action lawsuits was incorporated, and certain
deductibles were incteased from $50,000 to $100,000.

During fîscal year 2021,the Authority recognized $0.84 million in settlement income representing

insurance reimbursement of legal expenses incurred in defense of claims made by the operator of the

CSWS Recycling Facility.

8. COMMITMENTS

The Authority has various operating leases for its corporate office space, the Essex transfer station and

offîce equipment, which totaled approximately $216,000 and $215,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021

and 2020,' rcspectively.

The Authority also has agreements with various municipalities for payments in lieu of taxes (*PILOT")
for personal and real property. For each of the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
the PILOT payments, which are included as a cost of solid waste totaled $1,603,000 and $1,606,000,
respectively. The City of Hartford PILOT agreement for the CSWS ended as of June 30,2021. The City
of Hartford PILOT payment totaled 51,500,000 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases and future contracted PILOT payments

as of June 30,2021are as follows:

Lease

Amount

Fiscal Year ($000)

PILOT
Amount
($0001

103

103

103

103

103

103

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

$ zoo

210

180

t7
15

15

$

Total $ 643æ $ 618
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8. COMMITMENTS(Contûnued)

The Authority has executed contracts with the operators/contractors of the resources recovery facilities,
regional recycling centers, transfer stations, and landfills containing various terms and conditions. Major
operators/contractors and their contract expiration dates are as follows:

Operator/Contractpr

Contract

expiratjon date

Wheelabrator Technologie s

NAES Corporation

USA Waste & Recycling

CWPM LLC
Murphy Road Recycling

6/30/2024

6/30/2022

613012023

6/30/2023

6130t2027

Operating charges paid by the Authorþ are derived from various factors such as tonnage processed,

management fees and certain pass-through costs.

The approximate amount of contract operating charges paid by the Authority, and included in solid waste
operations, and maintenance and utilities expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were as

follows:

2021 2020

Proþct

s 47,286 g 48,777Connecticut Solid

Waste System

Property Division

fan¿¡ll Division

827

(8)
802

(6)

Total $ 48,105 g 49,573

9. CONTINGENCIES

Mid-Connecticut Project

In March 2013, Tremont Public Advisors filed a complaint against the Authority in Connecticut Superior
Court, claiming that the Authority illegally awarded a contract for Municipal Government Liaison
Services and violated Connecticut's Antitrust Acto and seeking injunctions, damages, interest, and

attorneys' fees and costs. The Authority denies the allegations and has asserted several defenses. On
January 21, 20L4, the Authority filed a motion to dismiss the complaint, supplemented on March 24,
2075,by a Motion to Strike the Antitrust count. On August 17,2015, the court granted the Authority's
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Motion to Dismiss the second count of the complaint and the Authority's Motion to Strike the first count.

On September 10, 2015, the plaintiff filed a substituted complaint. The Authority filed both a Motion to
Dismiss and a Motion to Strike the single count of the new complaint on September 25,2015; on March
31, 2016, the court denied the first, but granted the second. The plaintiff filed a second substituted

complaint on April 25,2016; as before, the Authority responded with Motions to Dismiss and to Strike.

On May 5, 2017 , the court again denied the Motion to Dismiss and granted the Motion to Strike. Tremont
did not fïle a third substitute complaint, but moved for Entry of Judgment and appealed the decísion. The

Authority also raised issues in the appeal. On June 6, 2018, the Connecticut Supreme Court transferred

, the matter to itself. In its ruling dated November 12,2019, the Supreme Court found that the form of the

trial court's judgment was improper, vacated the trial coult's grant of the Authority's Motion to Strike,

and remanded the case with orders to grant the Authority's Motion to Dismiss the second substituted

complaint. By order dated Novembar 1.2,2019, the trial court duly vacated the motion to strike and

granted the motion to dismiss.

In June 2020,Tremont Public Advisors filed an action under Connecticut's accidental failure of suit
statute against the Authority in Connecticut Superior Court alleging that the Authority violated the
Connecticut Unfair Trade Practices Act, based on the same set of facts as its prior unsuccessful lawsuit.
On September 9,2020, the Authority filed a Motion to Strike the complaint on several grounds, including
that it is exempt from actions under CUTPA under what is called the governmental exemption. On April
12,202l,the court found that MIRA is exempt from CUTPA, and granted the Motion to Strike. On April
26,2021, Tremont appealed that decision to the Appellate Court and on August 23,2021, moved for fìnal
judgment to be entered in favor of MIRA in accordance with its decision so that the appeal may proceed.

The parties are required to attend a court-run mediation session prior to appellate briefïng. The matter is
too preliminary to estimate any potential exposure.

ConnectÍcut Solid Waste System Project

In April 2019 FCR filed suit against MIRA alleging breach of contract, breach of the covenant of good

faith and fair dealing and for a declaratory judgment. After a trial before the CT Superior Court in the

fall of 2020, a trial court decision and an appeal taken by MIRA, MIRA settled the case by paying FCR

$1.3 million, which included FCR's commitment to run the facility through April 30, 202I and to
complete agreed-upon repairs before exiting. The litigation is finally and fully resolved. FCR remained

at the facility through April 30, 202I, completed the repairs, and there are no further or outstanding
matters between FCR and MIRA relating to the Agreement.

In connection with the lawsuit captioned FCR. LLC v. MIRA, discussed above, the Authority tendered

the lawsuit to its insurance company, Indian Harbor Insurance Company (the "Carrier") for defense and

indemnity. Indian Harbor tendered a defense to the Authority under a reservation of rights, and on July
l, 2019, commenced a declaratory judgment action against the Authority seeking a declaration that it
does not owe a defense or indemnity in the matter, Notwithstanding Indian Harbor's position, lndian
Harbor reimbursed MIRA for a portion of its costs of defense associated with the FCR case.

On March 31, 2021, MIRA settled the case with Indian Harbor for a total payment of $844,126.85
($365,458.08 of which had been previously reimbursed) which covered MIRA's legal costs for the FCR
case (less MIRA's $50,000 deductible). This matter is fully resolved.
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Zgrich American Insurance,Companv. et. al. and MIRA v. NAES Cornoration

MIRA operates the Connecticut Solid Waste System, a system that, among other things, collects and

processes qolid waste generated from approximately 52 municipalities in Connecticut and converts it into
renewable enorgy. NAES Corporation (*NAES') is a Washington corporation in the business of
operating and maintaining electric generating facilities. In 2010, CRRA entered into an agreement with
NAES to operate and maintain the Mid-Connecticut Resource Recovery Facility ("Facility") located at 1

Reserve Road and 300 Maxim Road in Hartford, CT (the ooAgreement"). As CRRA's successor, MIRA
assumed all rights and responsibilitios of CRRA by operation of law, including its rights and

responsibilities under the Agreement with NAES. The Facility consists of a waste-processing section

which processes municipal solid waste delivered to the Facility, converting it to a refuse derived fuel
(*RDF"). RDF is then conveyed to the power block section of the Facility where RDF is combusted to
produce steam, which is in-turn used to produce electrical energy, which is sold on the open market. The

Facilþ uses two steam turbine generatorso Turbines No. 5 and No. 6, to convert steam to energy.

Under the Agreement, NAES agreed to provide continuous (24/71365) Facility operation, and NAES was

solely responsible for operating and maintaining the turbines along with the rest of the Facility. NAES is
also solely responsible for any and all conditions created as a result of the Services it performs and to
prevent any damage to equipment at the Facility. To this end NAES also agreed to properly train all its
employees and to provide all reasonable and necessary protective measures while operating and

maintaining the Facilþ. NAES alone has operated and maintained the Facilþ since 2010, eight years

before the incident with Turbine No. 6,

Prior to November 5,2018 Turbine No. 5 was in a scheduled outage, substantially disassembled, and the
Facilify was running on one turbine, Turbine No. 6. On November 5, 2018 NAES was preparing Turbine
No. 6 for planned condenser maintenance. NAES knew the Facility was running with only one turbine
available. This was routine maintenance work NAES had performed previously. NAES failed to
perform this maintenance work properly on this occasion (by assigning a junior plant operator trainee to
restart a component (the auxiliary pump) and he failed to perform certain critical steps prior to restarting
it, (i.e., he failed to confirm that the steam supply valve \üas open, he did not look at the correct oil
pressure gauge and he opened a bypass valve, among other things)). These failures caused Turbine No. 6

to fail and a Facility outage occurred, The operator failure caused extensive damage and the entire
Facilþ was shut down until Turbine No. 5 was returned to service on January 27,2019. Both turbines
were simultaneously off-line for 84 days and MIRA was left with no operations. The Facility was unable
to process any waste beoause both turbines were inoperable. All the waste normally received at the
Facility from 52 municipalities had to be diverted to other disposal sites at considerable cost to MIRA.

MIRA made a claim under its own insurance policies, and paid for the applicable deductibles before

receiving any insurance payments. MIRA's deductibles include 5250,000 for property damage and a
time element deductible of 45 days following the occurrence for business intemrption. MIRA incurred
deductible expenses of $2,789,397 durirtg this 45-day waiting period deductible. MIRA's total
deductible expense is $3,039,397. MIRA's insurers paid out an additional $8,016,250, The total damage

from NAES's negligence is $11,055,647.
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MIRA filed suit against NAES in state court on November 2,2020. MIRA's suit includes claims for
negllgence, gross negligence and for breach of contract. NAES moved the case to federal court whçre it
is currently pending. MIRA's insurers are co-plaintiffs in the case seeking subrogation of the insurance
proceeds they paid out under the count for gross negligence. The Agreement includes a waiver of
subrogation provision.

NAES has asserted three counterclaims against MIRA: Breach of Contract, Common Law
Indemnification and Contractual Indemnification. NAES currently claims it is seeking to recover its
legal costs for defending against the subrogation claim. All three claims are based on MIRA not
preventing its insurance companies from filing a subrogation claim in light of the waiver of subrogation
provision. The law in Connecticut is not clear whether a waiver of subrogation claim covçrs gross

negligence. MIRA denies the claims and will vigorously defend against the counterclaims. MIRA did
agree to include a waiver of subrogation in its policies with all its insurers but MIRA has no control over
whether its insurance companies file suit or not. V/e believe the counterclaims have little merit and will
likely be unsuccessful; however, even if successful, MIRA's exposure would be limited to NAES's
defense costs, which are not capable of being estimated at this time. Discovery has just begun and NAES
has recently produced documents. The trial ready date is June 1,2022.

An early mediation was held but the case did not settle, NAES recently filed a dispositive motion
against MIRA's insurers to enforce the waiver of subrogation claim. After this motion is resolved the
parties will likely attempt settlement again.

Alleged Violations of the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)

On August 17,2020, October 5,2020,November 3,2020, January 14,202L, January 20,2021, and July 15,

202I a series of allegations were docketed by the CT Freedom of Information Commission to initiate an

administrative proceeding to address several complaints alleging MIRA violated the Freedom of
Information Act. The allegations primarily involve claims that MIRA failed to properly provide notice in
certain of its monthly agendas of certain Executive Sessions or that insufficient notice was provided at the
time the Executive Session was initiated or that certain matters discussed in Executive Session were not
appropriate for Executive Session, and seek penalties for such violations. Administrative hearings have not
been scheduled yet. Pursuant to the Connecticut General Statutes $ 1-206(bX2) civil fines / penalties could
range from $20.00-$1000.00 per violation.

Other Issues; Unasserted Claims and Assessments

On March 3I,2009, the Authority submitted a timely water discharge renewal application seeking the re-
issuance of the Authority's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") Permit to the
Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection, now known as the Connecticut Department of
Energy and Environmental Protection ("DEEP"). Review of the Authority's permit renewal application
by DEEP is ongoing, including whether the current location, design, construction and capacity of the
cooling water intake structures at the Authority's South Meadows Facility represents best technology
available ("BTA") for minimizing adverse environmental impact and, if not, what additional operational
and/or technological measures reflecting BTA will need to be implemented at the Facilþ. Since DEEP
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is fully aware that the Authority currently intends to suspend operation of the Facility indefinitely in
2022, it is questionable whether any further action on this matter will be required or undertaken.

In connection with acquisition of the South Meadows real estate in December, 2000, the Authority
assumed responsibility for the remediation of pre-existing pollution conditions at the site. At the same

time, the Authority entered into an Exit Strategy Contract with TRC Companies, Inc. ("TRC"),
whereunder TRC assumed the obligation for such remediation and agreed to be the Certifring Party
pursuant to the Connecticut Transfer Act. On May 7, 2018, TRC submitted a Verification (i.e., final
sign-off) for the site to DEEP, certi$ring that the site has been fully remediated in accordance with
applicable environmental requirements. DEEP rejected the Verification on lune 24,2019, due to the
discovery of PCBs on the site during work to relocate underground utilities by Eversource Energy.
DEEP has required that TRC perform further characterization of the site. TRC has completed the
charucteúzation and is in the process of developing a remedial action plan to address the PCB
contamination.

Coverage under the insurance policy issued by AIG Corporation that was the source of funds to perform
the remediation under the Exit Strategy Contract expired on March 30,2016. TRC may demand payment

from the Authority for the additional costs to finalize the Verification of the Site for the period from
March 3I,2016 to the date on which the Verification is resubmitted, because the source of funding has

expired. Additionally, if the resubmitted Verification is audited and deficiencies are found that require
correction, and/or the Verification is rejected againo TRC may demand payment for those costs as well.
TRC and the Authorþ have submitted a claim under the AIG policy, which includes coverage for
cleanup of previously unknown pre-existing conditions. The elaim has been acknowledged by AIG, but
no coverage determination has been issued. TRC has performed investigatory work over the past two
years, but has not informed the Authority regarding costs to date. Additional costs continue to accrue.
The Authority's deductible under the applicable coverage provision of the AIG policy is $100,000.

The Authority has entered into certain Tier 1 Long Term Municipal Solid Waste Management Services
Agreements with Connecticut municipalities whioh expire June 30, 2027. The Authority has also entered
into certain Tier 1 Short Term Municipal Solid Waste Management Services Agreements with
Connecticut municipalities which expire June 30, 2022. These Tier I long term and short term
agreements provide that the municipality may terminate the agreement within thirty days after receiving
notice that the Authority has adopted a disposal fee that exceeds the opt out disposal fee established in
the agreement. For fiscal year202l, the Authority adopted a Tier 1 Long Term disposal fee of $91.00
per ton in comparison to a Tier I Long Term opt out disposal fee of $67.73 per ton. For fiscal year 2A21,

the Authority adopted a Tier 1 Short Term disposal fee of $93.00 per ton in comparison to a Tier 1 Short
Term opt out disposal fee of $69.84 per ton. In fiscal year 202I, Tier 1 Long Term and Tier 1 Short
Term agreements represented 81o/o and 0.6010, respectively, of total waste delivered to the Connecticut
Solid Waste System. For fiscal year 2022, the Authority adopted Tier 1 Long Term and Short Term
disposal fees that exceed the opt out disposal fee; three municipalities elected to terminate their
Municipal Solid ÏVaste Management Services Agreements as permitted thereunder based upon the
adopted disposal fee.
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The Authority is subject to numerous federal, state and local environmental and other laws and

regulations and management believes it is in substantial compliance with all such governmental laws and

regulations.

10. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOTII\{CEMENTS ISSUED AND NOT YET ADOPTED

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain
Authoritative Guidance. The primary objective of this statement is to provide temporary relief to
govemments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-l9 pandemic. That objeotive is accomplished

by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in statements and implementation guides that first
became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and

Iater.

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements

by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as

operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the Çontract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee

is required to recognize a lêase liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required
to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow ofresources, thereby enhancing the relevance and

consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of this statement are

effective for the Authority's reporting period beginning July l, 2021, whioh reflects the eighteen month
postponement pursuant to GASB Statement No. 95 issued in May 2020. The Authority is currently
evaluating the potential impact of adopting this Statement on its financial statements.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Àccountingfor Interest Cost Incurred beþre the End
of a Construction Period. The objective of this Statement are (a) to enhance the relevance and

comparability of information about capital assçts and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (b)
to simpliff accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The
requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively and are effective for the Authority's
reporting period beginning July 1, 2021, which reflects the one year postponement pursuant to GASB
Statement No. 95 issued in May 2020. The Authority does not expect this statement to have a material
effect on its financial statements.

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The objectives of this
statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate
diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) anangements associated

with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The requirements of this statement are

effective for the Authority's reporting period beginning July 1, 2022, which reflects the one year
postponement pursuânt to GASB Statement No. 95 issued inMay,2020. The Authority does not expect
this statement to have a material effect on its financial statements.
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10. NE\ry ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED AIID NOT YET ADOPTED
(Contínued)

In January 2020,the GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020.The objectives of this Statement are

to enhance comparabilþ in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and

application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics and the

requirements of this statement are effective for the Authority's reporting period beginning July 1,2021,
which reflects the one year posþonement pursuant to GASB Statement No. 95 issued in May 2A20. The
Authority dOes not expect this stâtement to have a material effect on its financial statements.

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Pøyment Arrangemenls. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements
(PPPs). The requirements of this statement are effective for the Authority's reporting period beginning
July 1, 2022.The Authority is currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting this Statement on its
financial statements.

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement 96, Subscription-Bøsed Inþrmation Technologt
Arrangemenls. This Statpment provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription.based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). The requirements of this statement are effective for the Authority's reporting period
beginning July 1, 2022. The Authoriûy does not expect this statement to have a material effect on its
financial statements.

In June 2020, the GA.SB issued Statement 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financíal Reporting for Internøl Revenue Code Section 457 Defened Compensation Plans - An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No, 84, and a Supersession of GASB Stqtement No, 32, The
primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparabilþ related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not
have a goveming board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically
would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension
plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans

other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in
fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 defened compensation
plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through
those plans. The requirements of this statement are effective for the Authority's reporting period
beginning July 1, 202L The Authority is currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting this
Statement on its financial statements.
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MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the St¿te of Connecticut

SUPPLEMf,NTARY INFORMATION - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OFJUNE 3O,2O2I

@ollars in Thousands)

$ 11,1ó2

6,849
4,842
2,474

2

25.329

1.052

26.381

s 15,967

745
730
49

26.706

Ð(HIBIT A.

Page i of3

$ 33,199
7,595
5,512
2,729

213,616
249"292
46290E

ø57327\
5.s81

26,239
43

26.282
31,863

31'863

Authority
General

Fund

45t
4.116

4.1 16

975
1,059

fl.029)
30

30

30

4-146

Con¡ecticut
SolidWaste Mid-Connecticut

System Proiect
Landfill
Division Eliminations Total

I 2dA4 $

206

2.610 Q7.t59). 49-095

1.103

2,6rc (27-r59\ 50.198

Property
Division

ASSETS

CI]RRENTASSETS
Unresficted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowances
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Due from other flmds
Total Un¡estricted Assets

Restricted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets:

Depreciable:
Plaot
Equipment

Less: Accumulæed depreciation
Total Depreciablg net

Nondepreciable:
Land
Construction in progress

Total Nondepreciable
Total Capital Assets

TOTAL NON.CTJRRENT ASSETS

$ 3,664

i
$

,ì
44,197

84

2

5l

44,248

188,179

243.832
432,0r1

ø28.527)

25,353
4,485

29,838
(27.711)

3.484 2.967

10,130
43

16,109

t0,t73 16,109

t3-657 18.176

13-657 18.176

26,38r

See Independent Auditor's Report
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MATERIALS INNOVATION A¡ID RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the St¡te of Connecticut

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - COMBI¡IING SCHEDULE OF STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)

â'"i"i,ffi,i*"1i,i

Proper[y

Division
Landfill
Division

t65

E)üIIBIT A
Page 2 of3

Tot¡l

$ 1,390

E,801

1.052

l1¿8r

rr¿El

Authority
General

Fund

Connecticut
SolidWaste Mid-Connecticut

Svstern Proiect
LIÁ.BILITIES

CT]RRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from Unrestricted Assets:

Accounts payable

Acccrued exp€nses and other current liabilities
Due to othsr funds
Unearned revenue

Total Payable from U¡restricted Assets

Payable from Restricted Assets:

Acccrued expenses and other current liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

$ ls s 1,379
703 7,8s1
2 27,066

r.052

37-348

37.348

$ $ $

2

(4)
89

82

38

Eliminations

$

(27,159)

(27.t59\

(27-159\

156

9

165

720

720

724

38

362% 2 205 165 Ø,r5Ð 10?29

2

2

205

205

See Independent Auditot's Report
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MATERIALS II\NOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTIIORITY
A-Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

SUPPLEMENTARY INT'ORMATION - COMBINING SCIIEDULE OF STATEMENT OF NETPOSITION (Continued)

ä"i"i,ffi,i:;i,li,i

Property

Division
Landfill
Division Eliminations

$

E)GIIBIT A
Page 3 of3

Total

$ 31,863
51

38.866

s 70.780

Authority
General

Frmd

_g 3,426_

$30$

Connecticut
SolidWaste Mid-Cornecticut

System Proiect

NETPOSITION

Net investrnent in capial assets

Resficted
Unrestricted

TOTALNET POSITION

$ $ 13,657

5l
43.992

18,176

2-445

$

3.396 ú0.967)

$ 00.96î $

See Independent Auditot's Report
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MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RDCYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the St¡te of Connecticut

SUPPLEMENTARYINFORMATION. COMBINING SCIIEDULE OFR.EVENUES, EXPENSESAND CHANGES INNET POSITION
FORTIIE YEAR ENDED JUI\E 30,2021

@ollam in Thousends)

Connecticr¡t
SolidWaste Mid{onnecticut

Svstem Proiect

Landfill
Division

$

10,r80
522

t20
55

l0-702 175

1,727

100

783
2.610

8,092

l4-st7

(6,42s',) (r31)

18

lt34ì
(116)

(6,541)

(3-446\

(t3l)

(l3l)

20-752

EXHIBIT B

Eliminations Tot¡l

$ 37,753
6,153

24,X¿8

3,631
71,765

(r70) s4161
13,967

s99
4.526

fl70) 13.253

170 (1,488)

14.669

t70

l5g2)

Authority
General

Fund
Property
Division

Operating Revenues
Service charges:

Members
Others

Energr sales

Other
Tetal Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Solid waste operations
Maintenance and utilities
Legal services - external

Administrative and Operational services

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss) before dcpreciation
and ¡mortization

Depreciation and amortization

Operating Income (Loss)

Non4pereting Revenues @xpenses)
Invesûnent income

Settlement income
Settlement expenses, net
Diskibutionto SCRRRA
Distributions to towns
Other reve¡ues (expenses), net

Total Non-Opereting Revenues @xpenses), net

Income (Loss) before Trensfers

Transfers

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position, beginning of year

Total l\et Position, end of year $ 3,426 $ û0.967) S

60,888

52,505
13,867

s99
J.OJJ

70-604

(4r) (9,716)

l4

(55) (e,7t6)

(re)
(4\

(449\ Q3)

(10,r65)

3-516

(6,64e)

f4-318)

See lnde,pendent Auditor's Report
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$ $ 37,753
6,153

13,928
3-054

$$ $

4t
4t

99

69
168

138

7

7

844
(1,300)

(r6,15Ð

25

u4
(1,300)

(1e)
ft32\6

6

(4e)

100

3-31s

5l

(23)

(23)

t70

fl70)

(16,739\

(16,739)

E7.51923

(e,e87)

67.687

s s7-700 s 20-621 s $ 70.780



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

ST]PPLEMENTARY INFORMATION- COMBINING SCIIEDT]LE OF CASH ¡.LOWS
F'OR. TEE YEAR ENDED JI]NE 30, 2021

@ollars in Thousands)

Property
Division

Landfill
Division

EXHIBIT C
Page I of2

s 71,129
(67,s31)

(4s6)

3,119

25
25

lt-062)

tr.063)

2,08r

32221

Authority
General

Fund

Connecticut
SolidWaste Mid-Connecticut

System Proiect Eliminations Tot¡l
Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Pa¡.rnents received Êom providing ssrvices

Payments to suppliers and employees

Paynents to othcr funds
Distributions to towts
Distributionto SCRRRA
Settlement income
Settlement expenses

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

$ $ 60,150 $

(64,997\
9,473

(456)

4.170

- $ 10,792 $

2 (2,196)
- (9,547\

170

170

(170)

t170)

t87 $
(3e5)

(4)

ol2\

(1 l5)
78

(23)(23)

(37\ ot\

(2t)

(95 1)

18

l8

(1)
n.062ì

I r -063)

(3,446')
(3.446\

(5,M2)

2t.460

C¡sh Flows Provided by Invcsting Activities
Interest on inYestnents

Net C¡sh Provided by Investing Activities

C¡sh Flows Provided by (Used in) Capital and

Rel¡ted Finencing Activities
Proceeds from sales ofequipment
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Capital and

Related Financing Activities

Cesh Flows Prsvided by (Used in) Non-Capital Financing ActÍvities
Transfers 100

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-Capitrl Financing Activities 100

Net Increase (IÞcrease) in C¡sh and Cesh Equivalents 63

C¡sh ¡nd Cesh Equivalentso beginning of year 3.601

$ 3.664

7
,|

(1)

3,516
3.516

7,693

4-521

_s n2r4 $

See Independent Auditor's Report
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23

(212)

2.616

C¡sh and Cash Equivalents, end ofyear 2 $ 16.018 s 2_404 S $ 34302



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

SIIPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - COMBIi\ING SCIIEDITLE OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED JU¡IE 30,2O2I

@ollars in Thousands)

Prope4y
Division

Landfill
Division

(206)

(21)
t4)

EXHIBIT C
Page2ol2

(ó36)

261

Qee)

5,760

Authority
General

Fund

Connecticut
SolidWaste Mid-Connecticut

Svstem Proiect Eliminations Tot¿l

Reconcili¡tion of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustnents to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation of capital assets

Other income (expenses), net
Changes in assets and liabilities, net oftransfers:

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivablg net
lnveotory
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and offier liabilities
Due to/from other fimds

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

$ (55) $ (e,716) $

l4

$ (6,425) $ (r3l) $ 170 $ (r6,1sÐ

14,517 138 14,669
(47g',)(456) (23)

(738)
(13 l)
(e2)

5,830
9,473

(37) $ 4,170 $

See Independent Auditor's Report
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392

(1)

23
(9-547\

12

(74)
78

a
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MÁ.TERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the St¡te of Connecticut

SUPPLEMD.NTARY INFORMATION. COMBII{ING SCIIEDI]LE OF NET POSITION
AS OFJUNE 3O,2A2I

@ollars in Thousands)

Property
Division

Landfill
Division Eliminations

Ð(IIIBIT D
Pege I of2

Totd

$ 3r,863

\as2
5l

1.103

r,0s2

5l

Authority
General

Fund

Connecticut
SolidWaste Mid-Connecticut

System Proiect

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capitel Assets

Restricted Net Position:
Current restricted cash and cash equivalents:

Customer guarantee of payment

Town of Ellinglon tru$ - pooted funds

Total current resûicted cash and cash equivalents

Less liabilities to be paid with current restricted assets:

Other liabilities

Total Restricted Net Positiou

$ 30$

1,052

1.052

t-052

See Independent Auditor's Report
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MATERIALS INNOVA.TION AND RECYCLING AUTIIORITY
A Component Unit of the St¡te of Connecticut

SUPPLEMENTARY INT,ORMATION. COMBINING SCTIEDI]LE OF NET POSITION (ContinuEd)
AS OF JIINE 30,2021

@ollars in Thousends)

Property
Division

Landfill
Division

EXHIBIT D
Pege? o12

4
897

11,065
479
639

I
964

2,2,67

0
0

2,541
33s

0
19.t92

19674

38.866

s 70.780

Authority
Gsneral

Fund

Connecticut
SolidWaste Mid-Connecticut

System Proiect

NETPOSITION

Unrestricted Net Position :

Board Designated Reserves:

Debt service

Future loss contingencies
General fund
Improvements
Legal
Tip fee stabilization
Jets major maintanence
CSWS major maintenance

Litigation
Proj ect/Post-proj ect closure
Severancç
Hartford Sola¡

Pollution insurance
Total Board Designated Reserves

Undesignated

Tot¡l Unrestricted Net Position

Tot¿l Net Position

$ $

Eliminations Tot¡l

$ $$ $

2,541

2-541 3"808

855 fi4.775\

3-396 t10.967t

s 3.426 S (10.96î $

335

r2.508 335

3 r.484 2.110

43,992 2-445

$ 57.700 s 20.621 $

$4
897

I

639

-
2,267

I 1,0é4

479

I
964

See tndependent Audito/s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

 

To the Board of Directors of the 

Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority 

 

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 

General of the United States, the statement of net position, and the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in 

net position, and cash flows of the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (the Authority) (a component unit of 

the State of Connecticut) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, 

and have issued our report thereon dated September 23, 2021. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal control over 

financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 

for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 

on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 

the Authority's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements 

on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 

there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented 

or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 

in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 

with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 

was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 

considered to be material weaknesses.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from material 

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 

agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, 

providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 

not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 

required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 

results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 

compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 

other purpose. 

 

 
Hartford, Connecticut 

September 23, 2021 

 

 




